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CORPORATE INFORMATION
NEEH

Board of Directors

Executive Directors*

Mr. Cheng Chung Hing (Chairman)@®
Mr. Zhao Lidong (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Wu Guangquan

Ms. Cheng Ka Man Carman

Non-Executive Directors**
Mr. Cheng Tai Po
Mr. Lin Ching Hua

Independent Non-Executive Directors***
Mr. Leung Kwan Yuen Andrew GBM, GBS, Jp V20)

Mr. Li Wai Keung M@

Mr. Hui Chiu Chung /pP®

Chief Financial Officer
Mr. Chan Mau Cheong Bryan (CPA, CFA)

Company Secretary
Ms. Tse Man Yu (FCPA)

Auditor
Ernst & Young

Legal Advisers

As to Hong Kong law
Linklaters

Reed Smith Richards Butler

As to China law
Commerce & Finance Law Offices

M Member-of Audit Committee
@ Member of Remuneration Committee
@ Member of Nomination Committee

* %

* KKk

Mr. Fung Sing Hong Stephen resigned as Vice Chairman of the Group
and Executive Director and has been appointed-as Senior Advisor of the
Group with effect from 1 April 2020.

Mr. Wu Guangquan has been appointed as Executive Director-with effect
from 1 April 2020.

Dr. Ma Kai Cheung resigned as Non-Executive Director‘and has been
appointed as Honourable Advisor of the Group with effect from 1 April
2020.

Mr. Yung Wing Ki Samuel retired as Independent Non-Executive Director
and resigned as a member of Audit Committee of the Company
thereupon, and has been appointed as Honourable Adviser of the Group
with effect from 22 September 2020.
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Corporate Information (Continued)
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Principal Bankers

Agricultural Bank of China Limited

Agricultural Development Bank of China

Bank of China Limited

Bank of Communications Co., Limited

Bank of Xi'an Co., Ltd.

China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited

China Construction Bank Corporation

Hua Xia Bank Limited

Huishang Bank Corporation Limited

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited
Industrial Bank Co., Ltd.

Nanyang Commercial Bank, Limited

PingAn Bank Co., Ltd.

Shanghai Pudong Development Bank Co., Ltd.
The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited

Registered Office
Suites 3306—-08, 33/F.,, Tower 5, The Gateway,
15 Canton Road, Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong

Share Registrar

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre,

183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong

Listing Information

Share Listing

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
Stock code: 1668

Senior Notes Listing

The Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited

The Company’s 7.25% 3 years senior notes due 2021

The Company’s 11.875% 2 years senior notes due 2021
The Company’s 11.5% 1 year senior notes due 2021

The Company’s 6.75% 5 years senior notes due 2021

The Company’s 11.5% 2 '/s years senior notes due 2022
The Company’s 10.875% 2 /3 years senior notes due 2022
The Company’s 7.25% 5 years senior notes due 2022

The Company’s 10.75% 2 ’/12 years senior notes due 2023

Website

www.chinasouthcity.com

Investor Relations
Telephone: (852) 3188-3111

Fax: (852) 3188-1323
Email: ir@chinasouthcity.com
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PROJECT PORTFOLIO
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Shenzhen

2]l

Opening ceremony of
National E-commerce Demonstration
Base in CSC Shenzhen
RARYIZERE
[BREFEBREGEM]IFE

Qianlong Logistics Park
in CSC Shenzhen
WRINEFHNEZEDRE

China South City Shenzhen

China South City Shenzhen (“CSC Shenzhen”), situated at the Pinghu
Logistics Base in Longgang District, Shenzhen, is the Group’s first
project. With the local government further developing Longgang
District as an innovation centre in the east of Shenzhen, its ancillary
infrastructure such as logistics, healthcare and education will continue
to advance, bringing more convenience to tenants of CSC Shenzhen.
In September 2020, according to the joint announcement made by
the relevant national ministries and departments, it was decided to
launch the “market procurement trade pilot project” in 17 markets in
locations such as Inner Mongolia, Liaoling, Guangdong and Guangxi,
whilst CSC Shenzhen was the only approved unit in Shenzhen, which
would enrich the trade forms on our project. It would also attract
foreign trade enterprises to settle in and allow easy customs clearance
for micro-and-small enterprises.

In September 2020, the Shenzhen Longgang Wanda Plaza under the
cooperation between China South City and Wanda Group, has held
a tenant recruitment event. The program had run smoothly thus far
and the inaugural fourth generation Wanda Plaza was expected to
commence operation in CSC Shenzhen in 2021. Combined with China
South City’s multi-industry trade centres, comprehensive commercial
elements, e-commerce, logistics and warehousing services, local
amenities, etc., it will effectively increase popularity of CSC Shenzhen,
which in turn brings prosperity to the economy and upgrade of the
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Project Portfolio (Continued)
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Different Commercial buildings

The Outlet Centre
in CSC Shenzhen

in CSC Shenzhen

PRI R R

The “China South City” station
on Shenzhen Subway line 10

RN 30 #105% AR 5 F 0 | b
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new city of Shenzhen Northeast. Transportation around the project has
also been improving. CSC Shenzhen is only 2.6 kilometers (“km”) away
from the Pinghu Railway Station. In addition, subway line 10 passing
through CSC Shenzhen was open to traffic in August 2020, which will
generate more business opportunities and uplift visitor traffic for CSC
Shenzhen.

Positioned as a modern large-scale integrated logistics and trading
platform to serve the Greater Bay Area, CSC Shenzhen covers a wide
spectrum of product range, including textile and clothing, leather and
accessories, electronic parts, printing, paper products and packaging,
metals and chemicals, plastic materials, hotel supplies, tea and teaware,
cross-border products, e-commerce, outlets, home furnishing, child
education, produce and flower market, etc., on its trade centre
premises, complementary with various facilities and services on site,
such as banking and finance, hotels and restaurants, governmental
bodies, leisure and entertainment. In addition, CSC Shenzhen provides
micro-credit service for on-site small-and-medium-sized enterprises
("SMEs"), assisting them in resolving financing difficulties for business
development.

The project is located at the Pinghu Logistics Park in Longgang District
of Shenzhen, covering a site area of approximately 1.06 million square
meters (“sq. m.”) and a total planned GFA of 2.64 million sq. m..
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Nanning
ika

China South City Nanning

China South City Nanning (“CSC Nanning”) is located at Jiangnan
District of Nanning, the capital of the Guangxi Zhuang Autonomous
Region, a critical gateway between China and the Association of
Southeast Asian Nations (“ASEAN") countries. The project is easily
accessible by railway stations, highways and an international airport.
The Subway line 4 passing through CSC Nanning is under construction,
and is expected to put into service in 2023. Strategically located in
close proximity to Southeast Asia and enjoying the advantage of a
tariff waiver on cross-border trade activities within the China-ASEAN
Free Trade Area, CSC Nanning endeavors to serve as a key hub for
cross-border trade catering to the demand from the Northern Bay
Region and Southeast Asia. In September 2020, AETM Supermarket
commenced operation in CSC Nanning, covering a GFA of 50,000
sg. m.. Being the first membership-only hypermarket in Guangxi, its
presence not only serves an ancillary facility to the project, but also
brings prosperity to CSC Nanning with new momentum.

CSC Nanning is now in operation with continuing development, and
covers industries including textile and clothing, small commodities,
ASEAN products, home furnishing, tea and teaware, e-commerce,
groceries, automobiles and parts, outlets, etc., on its trade centre
premises. Through organizing a series of expositions, such as the China
ASEAN Expo and Light Industrial Exhibition, Folk Culture Festival cum
Expo, traffic flow to the project as well as regional brand recognition

INTERIM REPORT 2020/21 thEA%R&
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Residential ancillary in CSC Nanning

REEERANEEEE

Birdview of CSC Nanning
BEE R E

of the project were enhanced. In addition, the commercial complex, — 1668EHEIEXNEAEL - mEHFEERMNER
1668 Square, has commenced operation in CSC Nanning, so as % - KEILKBEVOTER  BATHEZ@REGA
to satisfy demands on entertainment, leisure and shopping within B E Bt - B - BB R/ NEFERESL FER
the community. This, at the same time, could enhance the overall WHEMME FHEFEEHAEERNFPDLEREMH
commercial attributes on the project. CSC Nanning also provides /NEE R o

micro-credit service for on-site SMEs, assisting them in resolving

financing difficulties in business development.

CSC Nanning has a total planned net land area of approximately 1.83 FIZE R AR EF (A BLI183EF K - &

million sq. m. and a total planned GFA of approximately 4.88 million 2| Z L ®WE4488& F K o
sq. m..
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Nanchang
=

Residential ancillary
in CSC Nanchang
REEERBNEERE

CSC Nanchang

China South City Nanchang (“CSC Nanchang”) is located at Honggutan
New District of Nanchang, the capital of Jiangxi Province. Situated
at the transportation hub for the Yangtze River Delta and Pearl River
Delta, the project is readily accessible to suppliers, manufacturers
and merchants via major highways, the largest port on the Gan River
and a complete freight network which includes a cargo marshal
yard, a container terminus and an international airport, coupled with
Nanchang West Railway Station — a principal high-speed rail station
just 1.2 km away. CSC Nanchang is also adjacent to the new provincial
government office. As a new business centre of Nanchang, Honggutan
New District is becoming more influential in administrative, commercial
and cultural aspects day by day. In addition, the gradual completion
of local amenities is driving visitor traffic and generating business
opportunities, laying a solid foundation for the development of CSC
Nanchang.

CSC Nanchang is now in operation with continuing development, and
covers industries including building and decoration materials, small
commodities, textile and clothing, leather and accessories, healthy
and green products, outlets, etc., on its trade centre premises. As a
Provincial Key Project and the first E-commerce Demonstration Base
in Jiangxi Province and state-level University Students’ E-commerce
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Birdview of CSC Nanchang
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Trade centres in CSC Nanchang

REEFERNERIZH L

Business Incubator in Nanchang, a great many e-commerce enterprises
have moved in the project since its establishment. CSC Nanchang
collaborated with
e-commerce startups and manufacturers, by proactively integrated
resources of wholesale markets and e-commerce and eventually
assisted on-site SMEs in business transform and upgrade. An area
of 30,000 sg. m. influencer live-streaming base has been set up to
provide one-stop services covering from anchor training, operation
management to film and television productions. In addition, CSC
Nanchang has engaged in the “Nanchang High Speed Rail CBD
Project” for the development of an ecosystem economy with quality
service industry in Jiangxi. The project was planned to cover “seven
attributes in one city”: teenage education, business headquarters,
commercial shopping complexes, business and cultural tourism, talent
acquisition, cloud logistics, and high-end residence. It is built to be
the central business district (“CBD") and high-speed rail trading and
logistics hub of Jiangxi upon completion.

local tertiary institutes to seamlessly connect

CSC Nanchang has a total planned land area of approximately 2.61
million sg. m. and a total planned GFA of approximately 6.87 million
sg. m..

Qianlong Logistics Park in CSC Nanchang
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Birdview of CSC Xi'an
AREFRNEME

CSC Xi‘an

China South City Xi‘an (“CSC Xi‘an”) is located at the Xi'an
International Trade and Logistics Park in Xi‘an, the capital of Shaanxi
Province. As a local key project, the Xi‘an International Trade and
Logistics Park is an open economic pilot zone and a core area for
modern service industry, aiming to become the largest international
transit hub and logistics distribution centre along the Silk Road
Economic Belt and an important strategic platform for the “Belt and
Road” initiative. In addition, the Xi‘an International Trade and Logistics
Park is one of the three largest clusters of China (Shaanxi) Pilot
Free Trade Zone. Benefiting from such geographic advantages, CSC
Xi'an is highly accessible via the Xi‘an City Expressway and Beijing-
Kunming Expressway, Lianyungang-Khorgos Expressway, Shaanxi-
Shanghai Expressway, Baotou-Maoming Expressway and other national
highways, forming an intricate spider network which opens to all
directions. to a railway container terminal and the largest bonded
area in the Subway line 3, which passes through CSC Xi‘an, has
commenced operation. In addition, the new stadium to host the
14th National Games of the People’s Republic of China in 2021 was
completed nearby CSC Xi‘an, and the subway line 14 connected to
the venue will be commissioned before the National Games in 2021.
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Trade Centre in CSC Xi‘an
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Zone for machinery and hardware in CSC Xi‘an
RARERNNDEKER

The 2" Motorcycle Riders
Festival in CSC Xi‘an

Outlets in CSC Xi‘an ALEEN TN
. T8 % EE R A R A FEEERR LA
° 9

Such infrastructure will generate more business opportunities and
visitor traffic for the Xi‘an International Trade and Logistics Park and
thus further enhance the value of CSC Xi‘an.

CSC Xi'an is now in operation with continuing development, and
covers industries including hardware and machinery, curtains and
fabrics, textile and clothing, leather and fur, automobiles and parts,
building and decoration materials, 1668 Square, outlets, cross-border
e-commerce, Central Asia and ASEAN product exhibition centre, etc.,
on its trade centre premises, of which the commercial complex, 1668
Square, was included in Shaanxi Provincial Key Project in 2019 and
2020. Leveraging its geographical advantage in the starting point of
the Silk Road Economic Belt, CSC Xi‘an is actively poised to capture
the immense opportunities arising from the “Belt and Road” initiative.

CSC Xi'an has a total planned land area of approximately 10.00 million
sg. m. and the total planned GFA of approximately 17.50 million sg. m..
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Birdview of CSC Harbin
MEBEERMNSEE

CSC Harbin

Located at the Daowai District of Harbin, the capital of Heilongjiang
Province, China South City Harbin (“CSC Harbin”), is the cross-border
trade hub among Northeast Asian Countries. Being the Provincial No.
1 Investment Promotion Project, together with its proximity to the
China-Russia border and merely couple-of-kilometer away from the
Xinxiangfang North station (Harbin-Mudanjiang High Speed Rail), CSC
Harbin actively integrate bilateral trade resources for the development
of regional economy and trade with its superiority of geographical
location and coverage of local industries. It has organized the 6th
China-Russia Expo, so as to develop an economy and trade logistic
gateway to Russia and form a trading platform in Northeast Asia
Economic Circle.
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Residential ancillary in CSC Harbin
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Outlets in CSC Harbin
IS BR VB E R A O BRRE B

CSC Harbin is now in operation, and covers industries including
hardware and construction materials, chemicals, machinery,
automobiles and parts, green food, small commodities, hotel supplies,
leather and fur, outlets, e-commerce, etc., on its trade centre premises.

CSC Harbin has a total planned land area of approximately 10.00
million sg. m. and the total planned GFA of approximately 12.00
million sg. m..

Trade centres for automobile and
parts in CSC Harbin
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Birdview of CSC Zhengzhou
BN 2 m i S B E

Zhengzhou

L1

Residential ancillary in CSC Zhengzhou

RBNERENEERE

14

CSC Zhengzhou

China South City Zhengzhou (“CSC Zhengzhou”) is located in
Zhengzhou, the capital of Henan Province, and adjacent to the Airport
Economy Zone ("AEZ") of Zhengzhou, which is the only state-level AEZ
with a complete network containing an international airport, high-
speed train, intercity train, metro and highway, to act as an integrated
transport hub as a whole to provide seamless connectivity. The project
is highly accessible and enjoys extensive transportation links — it is
a mere 16 km away from Zhengzhou Xinzheng International Airport
and a couple of kilometers away from the Beijing-Guangzhou Railway
Freight Station. The subway south line 2 connecting downtown area
to the airport across CSC Zhengzhou with three stations is currently in
full operation. In addition, there are several exits from the Beijing-Hong
Kong-Macao Highway, the Airport Highway, and the City Beltway to
the surroundings of CSC Zhengzhou; in particular, there are two exits
in merely 3 km area of the project, which will generate more business
opportunities and visitor traffic will be generated for the project.

CSC Zhengzhou is now in operation, and covers industries including
building and decoration materials, small commodities, hardware and
machinery, home furnishing, automobiles and parts, non-staple food,
outlets, e-commerce, etc., on its trade centre premises. CSC Zhengzhou
will speed up the development of residential ancillary and commercial
facilities such as multi-purpose commercial properties, in order to meet
the local demands.
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Project Portfolio (Continued)
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The "West China South City” Station on
Zhengzhou Subway line 2 in CSC Zhengzhou
BB M 2 9 ) B0 N 2 25 AR TEE R AR ] U

CSC Zhengzhou was elected to be “Provincial Key Project”, “Provincial
Key Investment Promotion Project”, and “Priority Relocation Site for
Wholesale Markets of Zhengzhou City Centre”. In October 2020,
Hong Hui Furniture Wholesale Plaza commenced business in CSC
Zhengzhou, further enhancing home furnishing industry on project.
In addition, in response to the local policy to support innovation and
entrepreneurship, CSC Zhengzhou is also actively promoting emerging
industries. Among them, CSC Zhengzhou has gradually become a
“Provincial E-commerce Demonstration Base” since 2016, “Provincial
Cross-border E-Commerce Demonstration Base”, and
Innovation Model Bases for Micro and Small Enterprises”.

“Provincial

CSC Zhengzhou has a total planned net land area of approximately
7.00 million sg. m., and total planned GFA of approximately 12.00
million sg. m..

Trade centres for automobile and
parts in CSC Zhengzhou
BRI ZE e B P

Hong Hui Furniture Wholesale
Plaza commenced operation in
CSC Zhengzhou
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Birdview of CSC Hefei
ARERN S EME

Trade centres in CSC Hefei
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CSC Hefei

China South City Hefei (“CSC Hefei”) is located at Anhui Feixi Economic
Development Zone of Hefei (formerly Anhui Taohua Industrial Park), the
capital of Anhui Province. Anhui Feixi Economic Development Zone of
Hefei is a core area for municipal development — “Hefei 1331 project”,
and was elected to be “Provincial Key Investment Project”, “Provincial
Dispatch Project” and “Provincial 861 Project”. CSC Hefei benefits
from the advantageous geographical location equipped with well-
developed infrastructure: a planned transportation system of railways,
highways and river transportation across China. The subway south line
4 across CSC Hefei is under construction.

CSC Hefei is now in operation, and covers industries including
automobiles and parts, hardware and machinery, building and
decoration materials, textile and clothing, hotel supplies, outlets,
small commodities, non-staple food, etc., on its trade centre
premises, combining various functions, such as trading, logistics and
distribution, production display and promotion, information exchange
and innovation, industry cluster, training base for education industry,
featured tours and comprehensive supporting facilities for urbanization
as a whole.
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Outlets in CSC Hefei
A AEZE B S B R AR

As Hefei further plays its role as the political, economic, cultural
and financial centre at the heart of Eastern China, CSC Hefei aims
to capture the opportunities arising from the area and is dedicated
to cultivating industries like education, and have already recruited
educational institutions of approximately 220,000 sq. m. with staff
and students over 30,000. This would bring about education related
business and huge visitor traffic, and in turn simulate advancement
and become the core large-scale integrated logistics and trade centre
in the region.

CSC Hefei has a total planned net land area of approximately 10.00
million sg. m. with a total planned GFA of approximately 12.00 million
sg. m..

Different education centres in CSC Hefei
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Project Portfolio (Continued)
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Chongging

BEE

Residential ancillary in CSC Chongging
REEEREMNEETRE

CSC Chongging

China South City Chongging (“CSC Chongqging”) is strategically
located at Banan District of Chongging, the only direct-administered
municipality in midwestern China, as well as the essential location
seamlessly connecting both ”Belt and Road” initiative and “Yangtze
River Economic Belt”. CSC Chongging is also the Group’s first project
in direct-administered municipality. The project is highly accessible to
the city centre and other regions given its highway network strategic
location in the Chongging Highway Logistics Base, the state-level giant
transportation infrastructure in the western region. Such location is
also the starting point of national strategies of “The New International
Land-sea Trade Corridor” and “Chongging-ASEAN International
Logistics Channel”. The transportation network around the project has
been developed rapidly. The first Chongging tram rail on Dongcheng
Boulevard was under planning by Banan Government, which in turn
facilitates the preliminary work of tram rail project between Chayuan
(X&) to Nanpeng (F¥). Following Chongging government’s
announcement that the development of new town in the core Southern
District, where CSC Chongging is located, it is expected the regional
growth potential will be on the rise.
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The exhibition centre in CSC Chongging
REEEFERNSEDD

The schools in CSC Chongging
REBERROBR

CSC Chongging is now in operation, and covers industries such as
small commodities, hardware and machinery, hotel supplies, building
and decoration materials, textiles and clothing, automobile and parts,
lightings and lamps, outlets, metals, cultural tourism, etc., on its
trade centre premises, providing a tremendous momentum for the
development of logistics and trading industry in Southwest Region.

There are CSC Chongging South West University and CSC Primary
School and CSC China Junior High School established on the project
to cope with the on-site demand in course of development. With the
opening of the schools, apart from attracting the flow of people to
CSC Chongging, it drives the need of various facilities for living, which
in turn further accelerates pace of development on the project.

CSC Chongging has a total planned net land area of approximately
5.90 million sq. m. with a total GFA of approximately 13.10 million
sg. m..
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
EREHE

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of the Company
together with its subsidiaries, | am pleased to report the unaudited
consolidated interim results of the Group for the six months ended 30
September 2020 (“1H FY2020/21" or the “Reporting Period”).

During the first half of the financial year, the effects of the pandemic
lingered. Despite the full resumption of operation and gradual recovery
of all business activities, both domestic and international economic
situations were intricate, with the continuing trade tension between
China and the US. Overall, opportunities and challenges coexisted. In
the third quarter of 2020, China’s GDP growth stood at 4.9% with a
year-on-year growth of 0.7% for the first three quarters, bucking the
trend to eke out economic growth. Driven by the macro environment,
the overall operating results of China South City showed a trend of
positive growth.

During 1H FY2020, while maintaining its dedication to COVID-19
prevention, China South City made great efforts to introduce new
businesses and improve infrastructure development. In September
2020, AETM Supermarket (FiEI%FZEH8T), a large-scale complex
with a gross floor area (“GFA") of over 50,000 sg. m., commenced
operation in CSC Nanning, while Hong Hui Furniture Wholesale Plaza
(EIER AEH#EEEY) in CSC Zhengzhou was also officially opened in the
same month. By sticking to its business motto of “Safety, Quality and
Service”, the Group has achieved remarkable results in cost reduction
and efficiency enhancement.

During the Reporting Period, China’s government strongly supported
the real economy by aiding small-and medium-sized enterprises
("SMEs"”) through various ways, including tax reduction and loan
interest discount. China South City benefited from a number of
positive news. Following the opening of Shenzhen Subway line 10 in
August 2020 with the CSC Station (ZEF I Uk) along the line, CSC
Shenzhenis positioned to‘enjoy a much more prominent advantage
in_terms of transportation and location. In September 2020, according
to the joint announcement made by the Ministry of Commerce and
other six ministries, CSC Shenzhen was approved s the first “market
procurement trade pilot unit (TSR EE S B ER)" in Shenzhen.
Coupled with other positive factors such as the development of Wanda
Plaza in the Shenzhen project, the commercial and trading business
of China South City has been significantly boosted.
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)

ERE®E(E)

In addition, CSC Shenzhen also benefited from the “Plan on
Implementing Comprehensive Pilot Reforms in Shenzhen to Build
the City into a Demonstration Area of Socialism with Chinese
Characteristics (RIIEZRPBEFELEFEETIORGERE
S BE M T E)". As this year marks the 40th anniversary of the
establishment of Shenzhen Special Economic Zone, Shenzhen has
been authorized to implement comprehensive pilot reforms under
the top-level design of reform and strategic planning of the Central
Government. As a local enterprise in Shenzhen, China South City is
well positioned to embrace this important historic opportunity.

Results and Dividends

Facing challenges from the pandemic and the macro environment,
China South City took the lead to achieve safe resumption of work.
With the concerted dedication and commitment of all staff, the
Company recorded steady growth in its operating results. During the
Reporting Period, the contracted sales of the Group increased by 4.4%
to HK$8,070.8 million (1H FY2019/20: HK$7,732.8 million); revenue
rose by 22.0% to HK$7,106.9 million (1H FY2019/20: HK$5,827.2
million), with recurring income up by 10.6% to HK$1,323.5 million (1H
FY2019/20: HK$1,197.1 million).

Net profit attributable to owners of the parent increased by 4.0% to
HK$653.5 million (1H FY2019/20: HK$628.2 million), while core net
profit attributable to owners of the parent (being net profit attributable
to owners of the parent excluding fair value gains on investment
properties and certain tax effects, impairment of goodwill, etc.)
increased by 46.4% to HK$734.7 million (1H FY2019/20: HK$501.7
million). Basic earnings per share increased to HK8.08 cents (1H
FY2019/20: HK7.75 cents).

The Board does not recommend the payment of an interim dividend
for the six months ended 30 September 2020 (1H FY2019/20: Nil).

Review of the Market and Operations

China South City has implemented professional operational
management with great efforts. The strategic deployment of
“Emphasizing Tenant Recruitment and Strengthening Operations” has
achieved positive effects. Meanwhile, China South City made strenuous
efforts to introduce and support the development of new businesses,
so as to promote flourishing development of all business segments.
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)
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During the Reporting Period, the overall development of the real estate
industry was affected by the pandemic and the macro environment.
Later in the period, with precautious measures taken to contain the
spread of the virus, the Company took the lead in realizing safe
resumption of work and achieved significant improvement in its
operating results. During the Reporting Period, the Company continued
to record growth in contracted sales as compared with that of the
corresponding period last year. In terms of management and team
building, the investment development division has achieved remarkable
results, with a number of projects completed for delivery. The
division strived to create an overall healthy development environment
by vigorously promoting refined management, improving whole-
process dynamic cost management, implementing various measures
to strengthen pre-activity cost control and building up a reserve of
outstanding talents.

During the Reporting Period, the business management division
continued to bring in quality industries and business tenants, which
has laid a solid foundation for long-term development, and also made
continuous efforts to enhance project management capability and
core competitive strength. In particular, the business management
division focused on promoting the development of various industry
sectors, among which the live streaming base for internet celebrity
e-commerce in CSC Shenzhen, CSC Zhengzhou and CSC Nanchang,
the membership supermarkets in CSC Nanning, CSC Hefei and CSC
Nanchang, the inexpensive quality home furnishing stores represented
by Hong Hui Furniture in CSC Zhengzhou and the outlets operation
in the eight CSC projects have become the four important growth
engines. In addition, the Group boasts several distinctive business
sectors such as education, automobiles and parts, healthcare and
beauty and health food. The rapid development of some projects has
created huge industrial cluster effect, such as the automobile and parts
base in CSC Xi‘an and the education base in CSC Hefei, which have
gradually replaced the traditional industries and created new growth
drivers;

Continue to@Push Forward Transformation

and Upgrade to Achieve Diversified Business
Operation

As a leading developer and operator of large-scale integrated logistics
and trade centers in China, the Group will keep abreast of\ market
changes, remain committed to enhancing the management level of
its existing businesses, push forward transformation and upgrade and
continue to introduce new businesses, so as to lay a solid foundation
for the long-term development.
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In FY2020/21, China South City is focusing on consolidating resources
of its existing businesses and exploring a diverse light-asset integrated
management business, including commercial complexes management,
project and property management, as well as outlet operation. Efforts
have been made to enhance complementarity and synergy between
the light-asset business and project operation and reduce costs, with
an aim to project China South City onto a path of diverse and high-
quality development.

With comprehensive improvement in the ancillary facilities, and in
addition to our cooperation with Wanda Group established in the
previous financial year, CSC Shenzhen brought in a number of strong
brands such as Heungkong Group located in Guangzhou during the
Reporting Period, further enhancing its reputation and influence.
Shenzhen Huasheng Commercial Development Company Limited
("Huasheng Outlet”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group, seized
the favorable opportunity arising from the opening of the subway
line to launch a sales promotion campaign, recording a noticeable
increase in turnover during the Mid-Autumn Festival and National Day.
Qianlong Logistics Group Limited (“Qianlong Logistics”), a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Group, has gradually completed the expansion
leasing to comprehensive third-party logistics
services, and has secured a number of warehousing and distribution

from warehouse

or transportation projects from renowned brands including China Top
500 and Fortune Global 500 enterprises. With good service quality
and years of experience, it has been highly recognized by customers.

On the front of introduction of new businesses, while maintaining
its leading position in the existing multi-industry trade centers,
logistics and warehousing distribution, conference and exhibition,
local amenities and comprehensive property management services,
China South City has been continuously exploring new businesses
and nurtured new growth drivers. For example, CSC Nanchang has
built an influencers live-streaming base with an area of approximately
30,000 sg. m., providing one-stop services covering from anchor
training, operation management to film and television productions;
CSC Nanning, CSC Hefei and CSC Nanchang have opened membership
supermarkets; and CSC Hefei focuses on education and training,
forming an industry cluster for science and education.

The introduction of new businesses has presented new opportunities
for the development of China South City, improving the business
ecosystem of the projects and bringing in huge volume of rental
income and customer flow, which helped to promote the collaborative
development of related industries.
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Implement Sound Financial Management with
Flexible and Smooth Financing Channels

The Group’s sound financial management and healthy financial
structure have been recognized by professional credit rating agencies
and financial institutions. During the Reporting Period, the Group was
upgraded from “B-" to “B" for its issuer credit rating by Standard &
Poor’s (an international credit rating agency) with a stable outlook, was
assigned the issuer credit rating of “B2"” by Moody's (an international
credit rating agency) with a stable outlook, and was confirmed the
issuer credit rating of “B” from Fitch (an international credit rating
agency) with a stable outlook as well.

In financing, the Group continued to strengthen its established
diversified and extensive financing channels. In the overseas market,
the Group issued senior notes with a total principal amount of
US$575 million during the Reporting Period, and repurchased and
cancelled senior notes with a total principal amount of approximately
US$167 million during the Reporting Period, serving as an active
effort to optimize its debt structure. Domestically, the Group further
strengthened its cooperation with commercial banks, and continued
to obtain various types of credit lines from them to meet its financing
and operational needs, effectively reducing financing costs and
optimizing debt structure. Since the previous financial year, the Group
has been committed to obtaining more long-term loans to extend
its debt maturity profile. From the previous financial year up to the
end of this Reporting Period, the Group has obtained a number of
long-term (over five years) fixed-asset backed facilities totaling RMB6
billion from commercial banks, which provided a solid support for the
Group's future development. Through effective application of facilities
from domestic and overseas capital markets, bank loans and internal
operating cash flows, the Group continued to maintain low liabilities
during the Reporting Period with the gearing ratio maintaining at the
level recorded at the beginning of the financial year, enabling the
Group ‘to_ensure stable financial position in an uncertain economic
environment. Looking into /the second half of the year, the Group will
continue with its prudent’ and sound financial management strategy as
well as diversified, flexible and smooth financing:channels, strive for
better capital management, strike a balance between financial.stability
and business development, and thereby create maximum value for
shareholders.
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Prospects

Looking ahead to the second half of this financial year, the complex
macro environment may exert certain impact on the stable economic
growth. However, under the main policy of “Stabilizing Land
Prices, Housing Prices and Market Expectations” implemented by
the government, the overall market will maintain stable and sound
development.

The Group will remain prudent and optimistic, confront challenges
proactively and strive to make progress while maintaining stability. The
“Trade and Logistics +” model that China South City has adhered to
for years will help the Group integrate resources in its advantageous
environment, optimize capital operation, intensify cost control and give
priority to efficiency. The Group will sustain its efforts to promote
industrial upgrade and transformation and drive the improvement
of its project ecosystem, so as to achieve the development goal of
“Integrating Industries into Projects, Building Beautiful New Cities
Conducive to Work and Life".

Last but not least, on behalf of the Board, | wish to express my deepest
gratitude to our shareholders, customers and business partners for
their consistent trust and support to the Group. | would also like to
thank the management and members of staff for their dedication and
wholehearted commitment, which have helped China South City grow
from strength to strength.

Cheng Chung Hing
Chairman and Executive Director

Hong Kong, 27 November 2020
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

P

BEE W

Business Review

Strengthening Primary Businesses with Flourishing
Development of New Industry Sectors

During TH FY20/21, the international environment was intricate.
Affected by the pandemic and trade friction, China’s exports and
overall economy were faced with challenges, and things started
to improve after the second quarter with the economy bottoming
out. In the third quarter of 2020, China's Gross Domestic Product
(GDP) growth stood at 4.9%, bucking the trend to eke out an
overall economic growth of 0.7% for the first three quarters. The
implementation of a series of favorable policies such as the “Market
Procurement Trade Pilot Program” (M5 HEE 55 2) and the
“Plan on Implementing Comprehensive Pilot Reforms in Shenzhen to
Build the City into a Demonstration Area of Socialism with Chinese
Characteristics” (RJIZFRFEEEHGFREETRERE S W
BB E M7 E) presented excellent historic opportunities for the
development of the Group's projects.

Facing the slowdown in economic growth and the ever-evolving
domestic and international situation, the diversified and flexible
business model of China South City has enabled timely and effective
adjustments to sales and operations strategies according to different
development stages of a project and the market demand in different
regions. Leveraging its innovative and integrated trade and logistics
model over the years, the Group will remain as a leading developer
and operator of large-scale integrated logistics and trade center in
China.

As the projects in various places are becoming mature, China South
City has been actively adding new industries and businesses in
respect of innovation and technology on these project sites, apart
from strengthening the provision and services on residential units,
multi-purpose commercial properties, office buildings, property
management, conference ‘and-exhibition. facilities, warehousing and
logistics, outlet operations and financial services. For example, with
the strategic cooperation agreement signed between CSC Shenzhen
and Wanda Group, a new generation of WandaPlaza will soon be
presented in CSC Shenzhen." Following the sopening of Shenzhen
Subway line 10 in August 2020 with the CSC Station (ZEFF¥k k) along
the line, the commercial ancillaries in the surrounding area have been
upgraded, which in turn attracted more customer flow.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
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The opening of AETM Supermarket (a large-scale complex with a
GFA of over 50,000 sq. m.) in CSC Nanning and Hong Hui Furniture
Wholesale Plaza in CSC Zhengzhou in September 2020 significantly
diversified the business portfolio of the CSC projects, attracting more
customer flow and promoting the collaborative development of various
industries. Currently, China South City has facilitated the flourishing
development of new industry sectors comprising live streaming
base for internet celebrity e-commerce, membership supermarkets,
inexpensive quality home furnishing stores and outlets which have
become the four growth engines while maintaining the stable
development of its existing ones.

China South City is a leading developer and operator of large-scale
integrated logistics and trade centers in China, having all along
been pushing forward the transformation and upgrade of regional
economies and new urbanization. With the eight CSC projects growing
in maturity, in order to implement more professional and dedicated
management in project development and merchant recruitment, the
Group established its investment development division and business
management division in FY2018/19. The investment development
division conducts overall control on development progress and cost by
continuously enhancing milestone management and operation team
building to enable improvements in projects’ operational efficiency, so
as to better withstand market risks. During 1H FY20/21, the Group
recorded an increase of approximately 4.4% in contracted sales
compared to the same period of last year. The business management
division works towards high quality development by introducing an
increased number of large-scale established enterprises. During 1H
FY2020/21, each of the Group's business operations maintained stable
and positive growth. The recurring business growth sustained a stable
and robust momentum, with recurring income increasing by 10.6% to
HK$1,323.5 million compared to the same period of last year.

During 1H FY2020/21, the Group's total revenue increased by 22.0%
to HK$7,106.9 million (1H FY2019/20: HK$5,827.2 million). Its recurring
income grew by 10.6% year-on-year from HK$1,197.1 million in 1H
FY2019/20 to HK$1,323.5 million in the Reporting Period, accounting
for 18.6% of the total revenue (1H FY2019/20: 20.5%). Gross profit
margin was 38% (1H FY2019/20: 39%). Net profit attributable to
owners of the parent was HK$653.5 million (1H FY2019/20: HK$628.2
million). Basic earnings per share amounted to HK8.08 cents (1H
FY2019/20: HK7.75 cents).
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
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Investment Development Division

Project Investment and Development

The investment development division mainly focuses on the Group’s
project investment, development and construction, laying a solid
foundation for subsequent merchant recruitment and project
operation. To meet local demands of projects in different places,
the Group has developed various types of commercial complexes
accordingly. Multi-purpose commercial properties have been
developed in various projects, such as Zhengzhou, Xi‘an, Nanchang,
and Shenzhen. Furthermore, government service centers and science
and education industries have been introduced to certain projects.
With respect to project construction, the investment development
division keeps abreast of the latest development trend by continuously
improving the construction standard, so as to elevate the construction
quality of projects. For instance, the Zijingmingdu residential project of
CSC Zhengzhou was listed in the first batch of “Model Construction
Sites with Standardized Construction Quality in Henan Province
(NEAEETRESZE R T i) by the Department of
Housing and Urban-Rural Development ({7 B%) of Henan province.
This project adopted the engineering general contracting model of
“prefabricated construction + EPC”, which was more environmentally-
friendly with less carbon footprints and higher quality standard. During
the Reporting Period, in terms of management and team building,
the investment development division has achieved remarkable results,
with a number of projects completed for delivery. The division strived
to create an overall healthy development environment by vigorously
promoting refined management, improving whole-process dynamic
cost management, implementing various measures to strengthen pre-
activity cost control and building up a reserve of outstanding talents.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
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In 1H FY2020/21, the Group recorded total contracted sales of
approximately HK$8,070.8 million, with GFA of approximately 883,000
sq. m..

R202021 B EE EHF AEEBSANHEE
4980.7081E 8T * BAHEE £ E A 4883,000F
Tk o

Contracted Sales EHHE
1H FY2020/21 1H FY2019/20
202021 FL¥ 5 20192081 F L ¥ F
Average  Contracted Average Contracted
selling price amount selling price amount
(before (before % of total (before (before % of total
deduction of deduction of  contracted deduction of  deduction of contracted
GFA sales tax) sales tax) sales amount GFA sales tax) sales tax)  sales amount
FHEE aHeE THER ok
(MRHEE (NRHE LEOHE (MEHEE  (IKRHE Ba0#E
BEEEE BiAN) BA Bk BERE BiAT) A e®EL%
(sq. m.) (HK$/sq. m.) (HKS'million) (sq. m)  (HK$/sq. m.)  (HK$'million)
(Br/ (Brn/
(FHX) 5K (ABER) (FRK) FAK)  (ABERL)
CSC Shenzhen RINZE B 5,400 12,000 64.8 0.8% 1,800 14,700 26.5 0.3%
CSC Nanchang EEELE 89,500 9,900 885.1 11.0% 28,900 13,300 384.1 5.0%
CSC Nanning HEEHH 29,600 9,200 271.0 3.3% 51,600 8,300 4297 5.6%
CSC Xi'an ARERY, 169,300 10,000 1,685.6 209% 158,700 9,300 1,474.1 19.1%
CSC Harbin REEERY 105,600 9,100 965.2 12.0% 111,600 7,500 8407 10.9%
CSC Zhengzhou B ERE 368,500 8,700 3,189.4 39.5% 371,400 8,700 3,2423 41.9%
CSC Hefei ELETE 18,100 9,400 169.8 2.1% 1,300 14,300 18.6 0.2%
CSC Chongging EFERN 97,000 8,700 839.9 10.4% 149,500 8,800 1,316.8 17.0%
Total/average @it/ 1 883,000 9,100 8,070.8 100.0% 874,800 8,800 77328 100.0%

CSC Shenzhen

CSC Shenzhen recorded a total completed GFA of approximately
2.39 million sq. m., and Phases | and Il and part of Phase Il of CSC
Shenzhen’s properties have commenced operation of their respective
trade centers and ancillary facilities, including approximately 1.62
million sq. m. of trade centers, approximately 412,000 sq. m. of
residential ancillaries and multi-purpose commercial properties and
approximately 356,200 sg. m. of warehousing and other facilities.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
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CSC Nanchang

CSC Nanchang recorded a total completed GFA of approximately 2.40
million sg. m., including approximately 1.07 million sq. m. of trade
centers, approximately 1.28 million sg. m. of residential ancillaries and
approximately 44,300 sq. m. of warehousing facilities.

CSC Nanning

CSC Nanning recorded a total completed GFA of approximately
1.95 million sg. m., including approximately 896,600 sq. m. of
trade centers, approximately 814,100 sq. m. of residential ancillaries,
approximately 205,600 sq. m. of multi-purpose commercial
properties and approximately 36,800 sq. m. of warehousing facilities.
Construction of multi-purpose commercial properties with a GFA of
approximately 154,800 sg. m. was underway.

CSC Xi'an

CSC Xi'an recorded a total completed GFA of approximately 1.88
million sg. m., including approximately 1.68 million sq. m. of trade
centers, approximately 119,900 sq. m. of multi-purpose commercial
properties, approximately 52,000 sq. m. of warehousing facilities and
approximately 23,300 sq. m. of ancillary facilities.

CSC Harbin

CSC Harbin recorded a total completed GFA of approximately 1.98
million sg. m., including approximately 1.43 million sq. m. of trade
centers, approximately 8,700 sq. m. of multi-purpose commercial
properties, approximately 454,100 sg. m. of residential ancillaries, and
approximately 81,600 sg. m. of logistics and warehousing and ancillary

facilities.

CSC Zhengzhou

CSC Zhengzhou recorded a total completed GFA of approximately 3.70
million sg. m., including approximately 2.66 million sq. m. of trade
centers, approximately 286,200 sq. m. of warehousing and ancillary
facilities and. approximately 751,500 sg.” m. of residential ancillaries.
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CSC Hefei

CSC Hefei recorded a total completed GFA of approximately 3.16
million sg. m., including approximately 1.59 million sq. m. of trade
centers, approximately 1.50 million sq. m. of residential ancillaries and
approximately 82,000 sq. m. of warehousing and ancillary facilities.

CSC Chonggqing

CSC Chongging recorded a total completed GFA of approximately 2.00
million sg. m., including approximately 1.26 million sq. m. of trade
centers, approximately 519,300 sq. m. of residential ancillaries and
approximately 217,100 sq. m. of warehousing and ancillary facilities.

Business Management Division

Consolidating Resources to Continuously Push
Forward Transformation and Upgrade

China South City pays high attention to the overall operation of its
projects. Apart from actively enriching the industries on project sites
and promoting industry cluster, China South City has been providing
or introducing a variety of ancillary facilities and services in response
to the demands of its project management and expansion, so as to
develop a comprehensive business portfolio. The business management
division is principally engaged in tenants recruitment and operation
management of the Group, providing professional operation and
management services along the value chains of China South City’'s
development, investment and financing. Its business covers trade
centers, logistics zones, hotels, integrated commercial complexes,
commercial blocks, neighborhood centers, residential ancillary, and
multi-purpose commercial properties.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
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During the Reporting Period, the Group continued to implement the
strategy of “Emphasizing on Merchants Recruitment and Strengthening
Operation”. The establishment of a professional business management
division ensured more professional
management and merchants recruitment and introduction of emerging
and new targeted industries that are aligned with the upcoming
development trend. In particular, the internet celebrity e-commerce
bases in CSC Shenzhen, CSC Zhengzhou and CSC Nanchang, the
membership supermarkets in CSC Nanning, CSC Hefei and CSC

performance in project

Nanchang, the inexpensive quality home furnishing stores represented
by Hong Hui Furniture Wholesale Plaza in CSC Zhengzhou and the
existing outlets operation have become the four growth engines for
business development. In addition, the Group boasts several distinctive
business sectors such as education, automobiles and parts, healthcare
and beauty and health food. The rapid development of some projects
has created huge industrial cluster effect, such as the automobile and
parts specialized market in CSC Xi'an and the education base in CSC
Hefei, which were strategically complementary to the Group’s existing
businesses.

During the Reporting Period, with the introduction of the “Plan
on Implementing Comprehensive Pilot Reforms in Shenzhen to
Build the City into a Demonstration Area of Socialism with Chinese
Characteristics”, the implementation of the Market Procurement Trade
Pilot Program and the opening of the e-commerce demonstration base,
China South City benefited from a variety of key strategic policies,
which presented new historic opportunities for the development of
its commercial and trade business. In addition, as Huawei offered
Cloud services for on-site SMEs and facilitated the construction of
smart industrial parks, coupled with the implementation of a series
of favorable policies, China South City continued to introduce new
technologies and push forward digital transformation, laying a solid
foundation for the innovation and development of commercial and
trade business.

PropertyLeasing and Property Management

The Group implemented a diversified property management model.
As a leading developer and operator of large-scale integration
logistics and trade centers in China, China South City has adapted
to changes and has developed a diversified .and flexible -model for
property management and ancillary services to ensure stable revenue
sources and sustainable development in the future. Residential
facilities, shopping malls, wholesale markets, as well as:conference
and exhibition, are developed to create synergy. Business is tuned and
optimized according to local market demands.
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After years of development, the property management segment has
gained National First-Class Property Management Qualification. It
was one of the few integrated property management firms capable
of managing both trade center premises and residential properties in
China. As the projects in various cities mature over time, the Group
continuously seeks to add multiple streams of revenue to improve its
operation, including advertising and exhibitions, pop-up space leasing
and car parking. Meanwhile, the Group continued to strengthen
digitalization on its project and property management through the
application of mobile payment, online payment, electronic invoicing,
with a view to providing higher usability
while significantly reducing manpower costs but increasing efficiency.

smart device control, etc.,

During the Reporting Period,
leasing and property management amounted to HK$748.7 million (1H

revenues generated from property

FY2019/20: HK$660.8 million), representing a year-on-year increase of
13.3%.

Logistics and Warehousing Services

Qianlong Logistics is an integrated modern logistics enterprise. As
a professional operator of e-commerce, logistics and information
industrial parks, it adopted the
mode to realize the integration of information and resources between
transportation, warehousing, distribution and other logistics services
providers and production, manufacturing, sales, e-commerce and other

cargo owners across the country through the platform, and focused

“Internet + Logistics Parks” operation

on the establishment of the integrated CSC logistics network. Built
on the base of stable logistics park operation, Qianlong Logistics
actively expanded its comprehensive third-party logistics services of
warehousing and distribution. During the Reporting Period, Qianlong
Logistics has enhanced its service level by upgrading to include high
standard warehouses and planning to expand its business on cold chain
warehousing.

During the Reporting Period, revenues generated from logistics and
warehousing services amounted to HK$203.3 million (1H FY2019/20:
HK$196.4 million), representing a year-on-year increase of 3.5%.
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Outlet Operations

Huasheng Outlet, specialized in outlet development and operation,
unceasingly enhances its commercial value through professional
and effective management. During the Reporting Period, Huasheng
Outlet launched various new activities and measures in operation,
merchant recruitment, expansion and other aspects by making active
efforts in innovation. In terms of operation, during the Reporting
Period, Huasheng Outlet has carried out hundreds of activities with
a significant increase in the overall sales. In terms of the marketing,
influencers live-streaming and other innovative selling points were
adopted, effectively increasing audience traffic and online business
volume. In terms of tenant recruitment, Huasheng Outlet has
established a comprehensive nationwide branding database and been
in cooperation with more than one thousand strategic brand names.
Through cost-saving, optimization of operation structure, and the
change in tenancy mix and operation, a firm foundation is laid for
future development.

During the Reporting Period, outlet operations recorded a turnover of
HK$223.1 million (1H FY2019/20: HK$201.3 million), representing a
year-on-year increase of 10.8%.

Exhibitions and Events
During the Reporting Period, the Group organized a number of large-
scale exhibitions and events.

As this year marks the 18th anniversary of the establishment of the
Group, an event under the theme of “Mutual Sharing and Benefit
in CSC” was officially launched in May 2020, which provided an
opportunity for our subsidiaries and business segments to share the
development achievements of the Company with all business partners
and customers, with aim to strengthen the reputation of the CSC
brand. The event also boosted sales of various business segments
through a wide variety of promotion campaigns, driving the flourishing
development of all-businesses and further laying a solid foundation
for the development of the Company.
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In September 2020, the Second Motorcycle Riders Festival took place
in CSC Xi'an, which attracted the motorcycle suppliers based in the
project and numerous motorcycle influencers and motorcycle riders
across the country and provided a platform to promote motorcycle
culture. The event lasted two days and attracted a large number
of participants. The Motorcycle Riders Festival comprised brand
motorcycle trade show, motorcycle road race, motorcycle stunt show,
carnival festival and other activities, and boosted sales by organizing
joint activities with merchants from related industries. The event
demonstrated the efforts by CSC Xi‘an in founding a distinctive
industrial culture brand name.

Nanning & Southeast Asia International Tourism and Food Festival
was successfully held in CSC Nanning from 1 October to 11 October
2020. The food festival demonstrated the Chinese traditional delicious
food culture by combining the local distinctive delicacy of Guangxi
Province and three major Chinese cuisines namely the Sichuan Cuisine,
Hunan Cuisine and Cantonese Cuisine with Southeast Asian culture
and cuisine, and established three function areas including cuisine,
commodities as well as culture and tourism interaction. During the food
festival, a variety of activities were also held, including Guangxi local
ethnic distinctive cuisine competition, Russian theme experience, home
living festival and various night market activities. The food festival has
been held for around a couple of decades, and has become a famous
tourism festival brand in Nanning and was named as one of “Top Ten
Tourism Festival Brands in Guangxi”, which has significantly enriched
the life of local residents, and also improved the operating results of
companies based in the city and strengthened the recognition and
brand name of China South City.

In response to the outbreak of pandemic the year, a popular sports
and health event was initiated concurrently by the Group in eight
projects, i.e. the “CSC Rune 888 (17 888)". Adopting the strategy
of combining online and offline channels, the event launched a tailored
clock-in mini program for exercise count PK contests, which offers
a variety of games such as step count clocking-in through WeChat,
visit and snapshot at popular internet destinations, leading sport
city PK contest. While promoting the concept of sports and health,
we integrated various consumption scenarios in different cities and
tapped the marketing potential based on the CSC mini program by
encouraging consumers to visit and spend in local CSC projects. The
event was held in September 2020, which attracted a total of over
10,000 participants, further strengthening customer loyalty to our
brand.

MR2020F9R - F_EERBF L EALZTERMN
ERBET BEANERAPUALRREZES
WA EEE: BERTHIE -2 HALH
EREXERE  BEMRKMNED  BIS5AHE
o ARBLIHEREBREE ELHRE R
RERE RERFESEA R ABEAH
EXGEFPHEDRBTHHEE  ©ONNE IR
HEALERREATE - REBAFENEEX
[ oE=9

M2020F10A1-11A - M EeRBE L RUKRIREER
BN EEm IR - ARERHFEZHEH
BHRERXERE - HEANEEERE)ZFE -
ME BX=AEXZ REEIRBERMBLE
A REER AG EKREFFHIEDNER -
ZREMHEERSRNTEARKEAIBFEER
AE BEHRBSEZERR RELEH S8
BRMEHE - ERMESETEPH20F - REK
NITERMENRBRIREHERLE [EE+ NI
EEEME] ERAMEE TEHTRAENR
B thEETHARBIEREENREA  BET
EFRTEMNRATEMANEE -

EYHSFRBERBL  AEEMEBEENED R
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In addition, the Group also successfully organized many other events
such as the Wine Carnival in CSC Shenzhen (& ¥l 2 /3 3 32 /H £ ),
the Home Shopping Festival in CSC Nanning (A EZFEBPEKEEE
#E¥EN) and the Third Autumn Home Building Materials Expo in CSC
Nanchang (FEEEHE=EUETREEMIFEE ), which attracted
numerous participants and attention. The Group also continued
to expand cooperation with various merchants based in the CSC
projects, and made innovations to resource consolidation and event
organization, with an aim to strengthen the cultural vitality of the CSC
brand and promote the healthy development of the Company.

Land Bank

With its unique and flexible business model, the Group intends to
retain properties such as logistics and warehousing facilities and hotels,
as well as 50% of trade center units for self-use or long-term leasing
purposes, in order to generate stable recurring income and capital
appreciation, while the remaining approximately 50% of trade center
units and all of the residential properties will be sold progressively to
generate cash flow for the Group’s development. The Group’s current
land bank is as follows, which is mainly for residential, warehousing
and logistics, and commercial purposes.

BN RYIERMEBET  HAEEERKEL
EBYE MEERRE—EMETREEMEBE
CEEHEBEAEH  BEXWI AKELER
BREAEZHREREAEABFPEANKS &R
Ee BBV LHRLE  TEIZRERRM
XeED B EERFEER -

Tk

ZHBAFARELENRERN  AEESRE
MRERERE  BEFEEDER50%ME m
XHPLOBEHERBEHRHLERE  LER
REFSBEMERANEEERE  MHATOL50%
FRXZPLOEHEMEENE AEEKETH
T RASEBRIEHAFNRER AEER
BLMEENT  ZELHOREAEETREE
"RE-

Properties
planned
Properties  Properties to for future Total
under be completed in development on planned Planned GFA
Completed properties®  development FY2020/21  GFA acquired? GFA®  for acquired land
RYUERR
1 142020/21 BEMCH BReE EEIHRE
BRINE BRONE BERINNE IHEEERY BEEEREC BEEH
Saleable and (% to total
Sold in operation Estimated Estimated Estimated planned GFA)®
(in sq. m) HER (ERARERERR
(FAR) BE EEH it it b B
(SC Shenzhen A= 863,000 1,529,300 185,500 - 66,200 2,644,000 2,644,000 100%
(CSC Nanchang FEERR 1,406,600 994,300 710,700 - 1,682,800 6,866,000 4,794,400 70%
CSC Nanning HEERR 682,000 1,271,100 154,800 - 372,100 4,880,000 2,480,000 51%
CSC Xi'an BAREER 921,700 957,700 1,081,700 262,500 1,715,500 17,500,000 4,676,600 27%
(CSC Harbin BRREEEN 701,600 1,274,100 881,400 61,400 2,860,100 12,000,000 5,717,200 48%
CSC Zhengzhou  BINEEM 1,840,300 1,862,400 1,992,200 1,091,700 4497300 12,000,000 10,192,200  85%
CSC Hefei RIEERR 1,863,600 1,294,300 721,500 149,000 2,113,600 12,000,000 5,993,000 50%
(CSC Chongging BERERY 646,700 1,353,700 891,600 333,800 3,609,800 13,100,000 6,501,800 50%
Total st 8,925,500 10,536,900 6,619,400 1,898,400 16,917,400 80,990,000 42,999,200 53%
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Notes:

(1) Represents the GFA for which the construction of all various types
of buildings had been completed, including properties held for sales,
warehouses, multi-purpose commercial properties, hotels and trade
centers held for rental purpose as well as self-use properties.

(2) Represents the remaining GFA after deducting the completed properties
and properties under development from the total planned GFA for
acquired land.

(3) Represents the planned GFA upon establishment of the projects. The
actual land and GFA to be acquired or built are subject to different
factors and may vary subsequently.

(4) Represents the planned GFA for the land acquired including completed
properties, properties under development and properties planned for
future development. The actual GFA may vary subsequently according
to needs of the Group.

Financial Review
The main objective of the Group’s financial management is to pursue
long-term sustainable growth while maintaining financial health

through a strong and stable capital base.

The Group proactively adjusts its business development strategies, the
pace of land acquisition and other capital expenditures in concurrence
with its cash flows from operating and financing activities, in order to
maintain liquidity while uphold growth momentum.

The Group actively manages its financing structure through various
financing channels, from onshore and offshore bank loans to different
interbank and capital market instruments, in order to achieve an
optimal capital structure and maturity profile. As at 30 September
2020, the total interest-bearing debts of the Group were HK$35.5
billion (31 March 2020: HK$33.8 billion), representing an increase
of 5% compared to 31 March 2020. The gearing ratio was 67.3%
(31 March 2020: 67.2%). Furthermore, as at 30 September 2020,
cash and bank balances were HK$10,263.8 million (31 March 2020:
HK$10,303.5 million) and the Group had unused banking facilities of
approximately HK$17.2 billion.

it

() RREZEREZNESERYENEE@EE - 24
FEHENE BRF ZVEBEYE BER
FHEMNERRSHL URERAYME -

2 RENMBCERIVERBRTVERNCE L
R AR B SRR -

(3) REBOSUBHRBREAE  ERRERR
RN LHAREARTLEESBREYEME
AEERT -

=
.

4) REREBBZIHHNRIZLEERECDRTY
X FERTVWERREFERRERDE  BHRE
EHEAUREEREASENTENELREE
T o

5t % 12 8
AEENSBERABIERRBRERENE
AER BRERATHERE YRAHEZHY
BiEE -

REB R ETI50 BRI G E R R R R
FEatWBREMEARAINIER  BAES

RBAFDORE - 147 REREE
EHH -

SEBABRNIINRTERMNRITEREARTISHN
TRAMERBEEGEERELE UERERESR
REFREBHENEHAE - & £202069H30H -
NEE @ BB A355E 8 T (20209638318 ¢
338BB T) © #2020F3A31HEMN5% : EAAE
bt R 567.3% (2020438318 : 67.2%) ° th4h - B
2020F9A30H + ME MIRTTIF R A102.638E AT
(20204F3A31H : 103.035E B L) M A EBH
BERAREMNREST -
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For the Reporting Period, compared with the same period last year,
the revenue of the Group increased by 22.0% to HK$7,106.9 million
(1H FY2019/20: HK$5,827.2 million), and net profit attributable to
owners of the parent increased by 4.0% to HK$653.5 million (1H
FY2019/20: HK$628.2 million). Excluding the effects of fair value gains
on investment properties and certain tax effects and impairment of
goodwill, adjusted core net profit attributable to owners of the parent
increased by 46.4% to HK$734.7 million (1H FY2019/20: HK$501.7
million). Basic earnings per share increased to HK8.08 cents (1H
FY2019/20: HK7.75 cents).

Revenue

Comparing with the same period last year, revenue for the Reporting
Period increased by 22.0% to HK$7,106.9 million (1H FY2019/20:
HK$5,827.2 million). The increase was mainly attributable to more sales
and delivery of properties during the Reporting Period and increase in
the recurring income.

HEFRBLE  REBMPAREHEAO U AL
hN22.0% £71.0691% 7 JT (2019/2081 X F & £
582728 B L) M RARIEEAE AL FFEIL
HN4.0% Z=6.535(5 78 7T (2019/20 81 By £ &+ 3 4F
628EEIT) - MBHEMELFERZ LA T
MRAFENEERE AEBNIRREBAR
1RBLFR L IN46.4% %= 7.347 1878 7T (2019/20 84
BFEE EFF:5017887T) c BIREKRBF N
Z=8.08/8 1L (201920 BN FE L+ : 7.7581) -

PN

HEFRLE AR EEMEO W AL IN22.0%
Z£71.06918 7% 7T (2019/20 B U & £ £ : 58.272
BAL) ENETERALHALAREHHNERS
MYEHERINRERBEEEWR AL INATE -

For the six months ended

30 September

B Z9A30H L <A
2020 2019
20205 20194
HK$'000 HK$'000 Change
FERT FET el =
Sale of properties and finance lease ¥ HERFMEHE
income A 5,783,395 4,630,099 +24.9%
Sales of properties HEME 5,776,967 4,603,754 +25.5%
Finance lease income MEBREWRA 6,428 26,345 ~75.6%
Recurring income HEMEl A 1,323,506 1,197,059 +10.6%
Property leasing and management MEHRERER
service income AR 75 42 A 748,688 660,834 +13.3%
Other'recurring revenue HFE MR A 574,818 536,225 +7.2%
7,106,901 5,827,158 +22.0%
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Sales of Properties and Finance Lease income

Revenue from sales of properties increased by 25.5% to HK$5,777.0
million (1H FY2019/20: HK$4,603.8 million). The
mainly attributable to more sales and delivery of properties in Hefei,

increase was

Zhengzhou and Harbin projects during the Reporting Period.

Finance lease income derived from leasing of office buildings
decreased by 75.6% to HK$6.4 million (1H FY2019/20: HK$26.3
million). The decrease was primarily attributable to less finance lease
of office building at CSC Shenzhen made during the Reporting
Period. During the Reporting Period, the Group entered into finance
lease arrangements with tenants for approximately 500 sg. m. (1H
FY2019/20: 1,800 sq. m.) at an average price of approximately
HK$12,800/sq. m. (1H FY2019/20: HK$14,800/sq. m.).

Sales revenue
(before deduction

Sales revenue

HENERBEHEGKRA
B E 2 UL A HN25.5% &= 57.77018 % 7T (2019/20
B EE FEF 46038 ET) BMTERA
EHRABEHECREGE  FBMNEBREER
ERZHMEHERZM -

REBTEMNMEREWARD75.6%£26408 %
JC(2019/20 0 BUF & E¥4F : 263088 L) - T
WEIRERAREHBE D FYEFGREFIBN
REHERH - RARESHM - ANEBEEMEAG]
SH R E B A B 49500 5K (2019/208f B 4F 2
E 41,800 F 5 K) 0 FHEE 412,800 7T,
K (2019/208 BR G 8 B 4F £ 14,8008 7L, F
JoK) o

Average selling price
(before deduction

of sales tax*) (net of sales tax*) GFA sold of sales tax*)
HEWA HEWA THEE
(MBRBEER A (MBRBEERE CEEREHR (MBRBEER A
For the six months ended 30 September
HZ9A30R1LAM@A

2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
2020 2019%F 2020 2019 20206  2019F 20205  2019F

(HKS million) (HKS million) (sg. m.) (HK$/sq. m.)

(BE#TT) (AE#T) (FFHK) (Bx/FHXK)
CSC Nanchang HEEEN - 12.8 - 12.0 - 900 - 14,000
CSC Nanning HEERR 31.2 130.9 29.7 1223 2,300 9,800 13,600 13,300
CSC Xi‘an ARERH 421.6 209.7 397.9 193.3 40,100 22,100 10,500 9,500
CSC Harbin RREEREN 924.6 146.0 853.9 139.6 121,300 19,300 7,600 7,600
CSC Zhengzhou BN EmE R 1,104.8 18421  1,036.5 17022 84,200 174,600 13,100 10,600
CSC Hefei BIEERYH 3,7045 20021  3,426.0  1,864.2 305300 190,500 12,100 10,500
CSC Chongging BEEEN 35.7 619.7 33.0 570.2 3,700 75,800 9,600 8,200
Total by 6,222.4 49633 57770  4,603.8 556,900 493,000 11,200 10,100
- Trade center units - RGFL 519.9 436.1 490.9 407.3 52,100 48,100 10,000 9,100
- Residential properties -EENE 56844 44651  5269.6 41379 503,400 441,000 11,300 10,100

- Multi-purpose - 5k
commercial HmENE
properties 18.1 62.1 16.5 58.6 1,400 3,900 12,900 15,900
* Sales tax represents value-added-tax and surcharges. * HEDEEERLWMER -
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Property Leasing and Management Service Income

The Group intends to retain approximately 50% of the trade center
units for self-use or rental purposes. Meanwhile, the Group also
provides property management services for its trade centers, shops
and residential properties delivered and in use. Given the diversity
of its property types and industries in China South City projects, the
Group’s business management division continued to provide diversified
leasing and property management services, to cater to the needs
of different property types and industries across respective projects
during the Reporting Period. Property leasing and management service
income will become an important component of the recurring income
of the Group in the long run. CSC Shenzhen, being the more mature
project in the Group's portfolio, contributed a substantial part of the
property leasing and property management service income. During the
Reporting Period, property leasing and property management service
income of the Group increased by 13.3% to HK$748.7 million (1H
FY2019/20: HK$660.8 million) compared with the same period last
year.

Other Recurring Revenue

Other recurring revenue increased by 7.2% to HK$574.8 million (1H
FY2019/20: HK$536.2 million). The revenue from outlet operations
increased by 10.8% to HK$223.1 million (1H FY2019/20: HK$201.3
million). Meanwhile, revenue from logistics and warehousing services
increased by 3.5% to HK$203.3 million (1H FY2019/20: HK$196.4
million) during the Reporting Period. It is worth noting that HOBA
Furnishing’s adjustment to operation has resulted in a drop in revenue,
which in turn affected the growth rate in the Group’s income.

Cost of Sales

The Group’s cost of sales mainly includes construction costs, borrowing
costs and land costs of properties sold and properties sold under
finance lease and operating costs of recurring business. During the
Reporting Period, cost of (sales increased by 23.0% to HK$4,404.2
million/ (1H-FY2019/20: HK$3,580.1 million). The increase in cost of
sales was in line ‘with the increase of total recognized sales during the
Reporting Period.

Gross Profit

Gross profit increased by 20.3% to HK$2,702.7 million (1H FY2019/20:
HK$2,247.1 million). During the Reporting Period, gross ‘profit margin
slightly decreased to 38% (1H FY2019/20: 39%,).
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Other Income and (Losses)/Gains

During the Reporting Period, other income decreased by 63.1%
to HK$55.3 million, which was mainly attributable to the decrease
in government grants and interest income. In addition, during the
Reporting Period, other gains turned from HK$22.5 million for the
corresponding period of last year to other losses of HK$143.7 million,
which was mainly attributable to the fair value losses on financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss and losses on disposal of
subsidiaries.

Fair Value Gains on Investment Properties
The fair value gains on investment properties decreased by 91.7% to
HK$23.0 million (1H FY2019/20: HK$278.4 million).

For each of the interim and annual financial reporting date, the Group
appoints an independent professional qualified valuer to determine
the fair value of our investment properties. The change in fair value
of our investment properties may be affected by a variety of internal
and external factors, such as rental area, rental rate, market prices of
comparable properties.

Based on our business model, the Group may have new additions of
investment properties every year that generate fair value gains. The fair
value gains/(losses) may fluctuate with time due to the change in the
volume of investment properties, the change in market conditions and
different construction phrases of our projects. Therefore, the amount
of fair value gains/(losses) will also fluctuate accordingly.

Selling and Distribution Expenses

While maintaining a healthy revenue growth, the Group’s selling and
distribution expenses decreased by 27.0% to HK$236.4 million (1H
FY2019/20: HK$323.9 million). The decrease was mainly attributable to
the successful implementation of effective cost control measures over
marketing activities on the sales of properties during the Reporting
Period.

Administrative Expenses

Administrative expenses decreased by 8.02% to HK$511.1 million (1H
FY2019/20: HK$555.7 million). The decrease was primarily due to
actions taken by the Group to streamline human resources and the
effective control of administrative costs.

Other Expenses

Other expenses increased by 111.0% to HK$199.2 million (1H
FY2019/20: HK$94.38 million), which was mainly attributable to the
impairment of trade receivables, goodwill and financial assets included
in prepayments, other receivables and other assets and other long-
term receivables.

HtWAR(EE) Wi

AR SR - HAb U AR 2 63.1% £0.553E 5
T ETERERNKEREE R B KA SR
Do BN RAARELME  Et R HEFRB
0225 B LB A1437B B THEMEE T2
REBBEZUAFEIEZ CHEENQFE
BEREENBARZEIE -

BREWMELAFEKRS
KEWERAFEKZ R P91.7% 2023 E T
(201920 UF & ¥ F 2784 B L) ©

REFEREENBRER AREYER-X
BUEEA A EED AT EAREOREY
¥HATHE - RENEAFEORE  BRIE
BABINSEEORE  BmpEAR - B2
% AL EOTEERES -

ERASENEERN  SFARESAHMENR
EME  TEARNTERZ - 2FEKE(BE)
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EL¥F :555788m) TEEHARAEERE
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Hihp

HoAh A S 3 H1111.0% 2= 1.99218 7 7T (2019/2087F B
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Finance Costs

Finance costs remained stable at HK$346.7 million (1H FY2019/20:
HK$302.3 million). Due to change in capital market conditions, the
Group's weighted average financing cost increased to 8.33% at the
end of September 2020 (31 March 2020: 7.85%).

Tax

Income tax expenses recorded a decrease of 12.7% to HK$691.0
million (TH FY2019/20: HK$791.2 million). The decrease in income tax
expenses was mainly due to the decrease in profit before taxation for
the Period.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

The Group finances its development and operations primarily through
internally generated funds, bank and other borrowings, and the
issuance of different types of bonds on the onshore and offshore
market, which includes but not limited to senior notes, short-term
notes, medium-term notes, corporate bonds and domestic company
bonds. The Group will continue to explore different financing means
and to extend its financing channels.

Cash and Bank Balances

As at 30 September 2020, the Group had HK$10,263.8 million cash
and bank balances (31 March 2020: HK$10,303.5 million). The Group's
cash and bank balances were primarily denominated in Renminbi, HK
dollars and US dollars.

Borrowing and Charges on the Group’s Assets

As at 30 September 2020, the total interest-bearing debts of the
Group were HK$35,514.7 million (31 March 2020: HK$33,753.7
million). The details of borrowings and charges on the Group’s Assets
are set out below.

Interést-bearing bahk and other borrowings

The Group. had -aggregated interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings of HK$17,188.2 'million as at 30 September 2020 (31
March 2020: HK$17,121.1 million), of which HK$6,940.0 million
is repayable within one year or on demand, HK$3,854.5 million
will be repayable in the second year, HK$2,140.8 million will be
repayable in the third to fifth years and HK$4,252.9 million will be
repayable after five years. As at 30 September 2020, the Group's
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings of approximately
HK$16,554.8 million were secured by certain buildings, investment
properties, properties under development, properties held for finance
lease, properties held for sales and bank deposits with a total carrying
value of approximately HK$36,839.5 million.
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All interest-bearing bank and other borrowings of the Group were
denominated in Renminbi and US dollars with interest rates ranging
from 3.85% to 12.00% (31 March 2020: 3.95% to 12.35%) per
annum. Furthermore, as at 30 September 2020, the Group had unused
banking facilities of approximately HK$17.2 billion. The Group will,
depending on the need of project development and working capital
status, utilize these banking facilities as appropriate.

Issuance of Notes

Senior Notes

During the Reporting Period, the Company issued (1) additional US$125
million 10.875% senior notes due 2022 in June 2020; (2) US$200
million 11.5% senior notes due 2021 in August 2020; and (3) US$250
million 10.75% senior notes due 2023 in September 2020.

During the Reporting Period, the Company repaid 10.875% senior
notes due 2020 with a principal amount of US$201.1 million upon
maturity in August 2020.

During the Reporting Period, the Company made on-market repurchase
of (1) 6.75% senior notes due 2021 with a principal amount of
US$8 million in June 2020; (2) 7.25% senior notes due 2022 with
a principal amount of US$10 million in June 2020; (3) 7.25% senior
notes due 2021 with an aggregate principal amount of US$100.906
million in May, June and September 2020; (4) 10.875% senior notes
due 2020 with a principal amount of US$39.9 million in May 2020;
and (5) 11.875% senior notes due 2021 with a principal amount of
US$8.5 million in May 2020. The repurchased notes were cancelled
accordingly.

AEEMBEEMABETREMEEAUARE
NETABEMN  WIZTF3.85%E12.00% ) F =&
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EARSFEEM - ARFIEMR2020F 8 A B Hiks (B8
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Details of movement are set out below:

May & Jun Jan  Mar & Jun
2018 2018 2019
2018%F 2018%F 20194
5K6A 18 3Kk6A
10.875% 1.25% 11.875%
senior senior senior
notes notes notes

due 2020  due 2021  due 2021
10.875% 1.25% 11.875%

2020558 202155 201558

EHEERIIMT

Aug Sep & Oct Dec 2019 & Feb & Jun Nov Sep
2020 2016 Jan 2020 2020 2017 2020
20195128
2020 20165 R2020% 2020% 2017% 20205
8R 9% 10A 18 2K68 1A 9A
11.5% 6.75% 11.5%  10.875% 7.25% 10.75%
senior senior senior senior senior senior
notes notes notes notes notes notes
due 2021  due 2021  due 2022  due 2022  due 2022  due 2023
11.5% 6.75% 11.5% 10.875% 1.25% 10.75%

0158 201558 2025508 2025508 2022558 2023558

Issuance Date R7RH ZBERE ZBARE ZBERE ZBARE ZBXAEE ZBARE ZELARE ZELARE 2B%FE

Us$'000 US$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 US$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 Us§'000

TER TR TEn TEn TER TR TEn TEn TER
Issued nominal value BEE 250,000 250,000 260,000 200,000 350,000 350,000 350,000 300,000 250,000
As at 1 April 2020 #2020F4 718 241,000 229,000 252,000 - 340,700 350,000 225,000 286,500 -
New issuance EGEES: - - - 200,000 - - 125,000 - 250,000
Repayment upon maturity HEBRER (201,100) - - - - - - - -
Repurchase and cancellation |68 R it 8 (39,900)  (100,906) (8,500) - (8,000) - - (10,000) -
As at 30 September 2020 2020594308 - 128,094 243,500 200,000 332,700 350,000 350,000 276,500 250,000

All of the notes above are listed and traded on the Singapore Stock
Exchange.

As at 30 September 2020, the carrying value of senior notes were
HK$16,018.8 million. The senior notes are jointly guaranteed by certain
subsidiaries and part of the senior notes are secured by pledges of
share of certain subsidiaries.

Medium-Term Notes

In April 2019, China South International Industrial Materials City
(Shenzhen) Company Limited (“China South International”) issued the
first tranche of the -medium-term notes of 2019 with a total principal
amount of RMB600 million’ with a maximum maturity period of 3 years
and at an'interest rate of 8.5% per annum.

Domestic Company Bonds

In August 2019, China South International issued the first and second
tranche of the domestic company bonds of 2019 with an aggregate
principal amount of RMB1.4 billion with a maximum maturity, period
of 3 years and at an interest rate of 8% per annum.

As at 30 September 2020, the carrying values of China South
International’s medium-term notes were HK$706.4 million (31
March 2020: HK$707.7 million) and domestic company bonds were
HK$1,601.3 million (31 March 2020: HK$1,605.4 million).
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Gearing Ratio

The Group’s gearing ratio (net debt divided by total equity) was 67.3%
as at 30 September 2020, 67.2% as at 31 March 2020 and 68.7% as
at 30 September 2019 respectively.

Net Current Assets and Current Ratio

As at 30 September 2020, the Group had net current assets of
HK$5,948.7 million (31 March 2020: HK$4,054.9 million) at a current
ratio of 1.12 (31 March 2020: 1.08).

Contingent Liabilities

The Group has provided guarantees mainly with respect to banking
facilities granted by certain banks in connection with mortgage loans
made by purchasers of the Group’s trade centers and residential
properties, and bank loans made by lessees of the Group's residential
and commercial properties. The guarantees granted to purchasers of
trade centers and residential properties will be released when the
purchasers obtain building ownership certificates, which will then be
pledged to the banks. For leased residential and commercial properties,
the guarantees will be released accordingly when the lessees repaid
the loan. Further details to the above and other matters are set out
in note 25 to the financial statements.

Commitments

As at 30 September 2020, the Group had future capital expenditure
contracted but not yet provided for amounting to HK$14,510.8 million
(31 March 2020: HK$13,221.6 million).

Acquisition and Disposal of Subsidiaries and
Associated Companies

The Group had no material acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries
and associated companies during the Reporting Period.

Foreign Exchange Risk

The Group conducts its business primarily in Renminbi. The income
and bank deposits of the Group were substantially denominated in
Renminbi to meet the Group’s development and operation needs in
the PRC. Other than the bank deposits, bank borrowings and senior
notes denominated in foreign currency, the Group does not have any
other material exposure to foreign exchange risk. During the Reporting
Period, the Group entered into certain forward currency contracts with
a bank to hedge an amount of approximately US$200 million against
foreign exchange exposure. A contract with an amount of US$300
million had been expired during the Period.

EXREEL =X

AN £ E 2020995308 + 202043 A31H #2019
FOAAMEARBEL (BB FEREREE)
DB A67.3% * 67.2% K68.7% °

RBEEFERMABLLR
M20205F9H30H  AN& [ i &) & & F B /£59.487
B 7 7T (20204F3 A318 : 4054918 8 7T) * BN LL
R A1.12 (202093 H3180 : 1.08) »
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RITHRRBRR REEEERBEYVENS @ £IRF
BRABABEBEERSHERR - A LR EME
HHOE - THFBARMBHERERMF25A °

A
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The Group continues to adopt a proactive approach to closely monitor
the foreign currency market and explore the domestic capital market
for financing opportunities. Other hedging arrangements will be made
if such need arises.

Economic, Commercial and Other Risks

The Group may be exposed to the risk of negative developments in
national and regional economies, property and financial markets. It
may result in reductions in sales and selling prices of the properties,
rental rates and occupancy rates of properties, and demand for
ancillary services and facilities it provides. It may also result in recession,
inflation, deflation and currency fluctuations as well as restrictions in
the availability of credit, increases in financing and other operating
costs. The development of the Group’s projects may subject to market
risks as it usually takes time to complete. Though the Group appoints
quality partners for the development of its projects, it may still be
subject to associated risk of the quality and safety of the products
and services provided by the Group. The Group may also be subject
to a number of regulatory environments in the territories in which
it operates. Changes in the regulatory approach to such matters as
ownership of assets and businesses, regulations related to development
and operations,
legislation may impact the business of the Group. Changes in the
political environment in such territories may also affect the business
of the Group. The management of the Group will keep abreast of the
environment and policy changes and make the necessary adjustments

exchange controls, tax rules and employment

in response to such changes, if any. Further steps taken by the Group
to manage the financial risk can be read in conjunction with note
46 to the financial statements as set out in the Company’s 2019/20
Annual Report.

Land for Projects and Restriction on Sales

The Group signs project agreements with local governments prior
to the ‘development of all ‘projects in order to outline the long-term
blueprints. of relevant projects. These agreements generally set out the
size. and use of 1ands and the related development plans. However,
the "actual acquisition of lands, land area and terms and conditions
of such acquisition are subject to the relevant regulations and local
governments’ requirements, the Group’s developmentsplans and the
results of the relevant public tender, auction and listing. Since the
development of each of these projects may last for maore than ten
years, the Group and the local government may discuss  to' adjust
the details of these agreements to align with the actual needs of
developments.
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The pace of the land acquisition and project development depends
on the progress of the Group’s planning, as well as the procedural
formalities as determined by the local government departments. As the
procedures and requirements set by different local governments vary,
the Group may adjust the development of each project according to
relevant conditions. In view of its substantial land bank and flexibility
in project planning, the Group believes such circumstances will not
have material impact on its development as a whole.

Pursuant to certain project and land related contracts and documents,
some of the land acquired by the Group may have sales restrictions
on properties built on it. These include that the saleable area of trade
centers of CSC Shenzhen is limited to 30% of the total buildable GFA
of properties built on the relevant parcels of land. The saleable area
of trade centers and warehousing facilities built on certain parcels of
land acquired by CSC Nanchang and CSC Nanning in 2010 is limited
to 60% of the relevant total buildable GFA. The saleable area of
trade centers or commercial properties built by CSC Hefei and CSC
Chongging is limited to 50% of their relevant total buildable GFA.
The saleable area of trade centers or commercial properties of phase
I and future phases of CSC Zhengzhou is limited to 60% and 50%
respectively of its relevant total buildable GFA. According to the
Group’s business model, the Group intends to hold not less than 50%
of trade centers and commercial facilities for leasing and self-use, the
related sales restrictions will not have significant impact on the Group.

Human Resources

As at 30 September 2020, the Group had a workforce of
approximately 4,050 people, decreasing by 14.38%
approximately 4,730 people as at 31 March 2020. The Group aims to
recruit, retain and develop competent individuals who are committed
to the Group's long-term success and growth. Remunerations and

from

other benefits of employees are reviewed annually in response to
both market conditions and trends, and are based on qualifications,
experience, responsibilities and performance. In addition to basic
salaries and other staff benefits, discretionary bonuses and share
options may be awarded to employees who display outstanding
performance and contributions to the Group.
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DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS
ERiE

Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests in
Securities

As at 30 September 2020, the interests and short positions of the
Directors in the shares of the Company (the “Shares”), underlying
Shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")) as recorded in the register maintained
by the Company under section 352 of the SFO or as notified to the
Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the
“Model Code”) were as follows:

Long position in the Shares and Underlying Shares
of the Company

EERFETRAERESFNES

R2020F9A308 + EHNAAQ R Sk E AT A AE B
E(EEREHFLBEGRN(TESFRBEEN]DSE
XVED) B ARRRRE G (TRED]) - 1B D R EEE
FHESALTRERIBEES K BEEHIE3521&E
FrENELM MEHELMMTAE%ET {nf
ARSMZETR(ZETR]DABANG AR
EABIMERRARWET

RAEARTAROREBRONE R

Number of Shares held

FEERGHE

Approximate

percentage of

the Company’s

Corporate Personal Family Share total number of

Name of Directors Class of Shares interest interest interest Options Total issued Shares®

fEALR

BRTRG

BIEBY

BEEpg Kt &5 NEER fHAES REER BhRE st BAR®

Cheng Chung Hing Ordinary Shares 2,224,920,458" 81,633,333 - - 2,306,553,791 28.50%
EpN Rk

Cheng Tai Po Ordinary Shares 588,984,145 4,936,000 - - 593,920,145 7.33%
BRE EFEL

Zhao Lidong Share Options - - - 18,000,000% 18,000,000 0.22%
HIR B

Cheng Ka Man Carman Share Options - - - 7,800,000% 7,800,000 0.09%
=X ERE

Leung‘Kwan Yuen Andrew Share Options - - - 2,000,000 2,000,000 0.02%
REE BkE

Li Wai Keung Share Options - - - 2,000,000¢ 2,000,000 0.02%
ENEL B

Hui Chiu Chung Share Options < - - 2,000,000 2,000,000 0.02%
AR B
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Notes:

Mr. Cheng Chung Hing is interested in 100% of the issued share
capital of Accurate Gain Developments Limited which in turn was
deemed to have interests in 2,224,920,458 Shares. As informed by Mr.
Cheng Chung Hing, he had voting rights and certain other rights over
1,446,666,666 Shares, pursuant to certain swap funding arrangements
between Accurate Gain Developments Limited and PAG Holdings
Limited. He is the father of Ms. Cheng Ka Man Carman and the younger
brother of Mr. Cheng Tai Po.

Mr. Cheng Tai Po is interested in 100% of the issued share capital of
Proficient Success Limited which in turn holds 588,984,145 Shares and is
therefore deemed to be interested in the aforesaid 588,984,145 Shares.
Mr. Cheng Tai Po is the elder brother of Mr. Cheng Chung Hing and
the uncle of Ms. Cheng Ka Man Carman.

The relevant interests are share options granted to Mr. Zhao Lidong
and Ms. Cheng Ka Man Carman pursuant to the Company’s 2019 Share
Option Scheme adopted on 13 September 2019. Further details of the
2019 Share Option Scheme are set out in the section headed “Share
Option Scheme” in this report.

The relevant interests are share options granted to Mr. Leung Kwan
Yuen Andrew, Mr. Li Wai Keung and Mr. Hui Chiu Chung pursuant to
the Company’s 2009 Share Option Scheme adopted on 4 September
2009. Further details of the 2009 Share Option Scheme are set out in
the section headed “Share Option Scheme” below.

The percentage shareholding is calculated on the basis of 8,091,892,848
Shares issued as at 30 September 2020.

it

M

£ A BB 42 B % 4 $E /5 Accurate Gain Developments
Limited 2 & 1T AR 100% % - MZRABHR A
£H2,224,920,458/ R ety 2 & o IRIFEP IR 5T
4 Z AN » & Accurate Gain Developments Limited
HB1PAG Holdings Limited®) & TH IR E 2 HF - H
B£1,446,666,666 0% 1% 17 = & 18 B 1% 1 [ H {th #&
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588,984,145 fx {5 » B X AR BT A Lt
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Save as disclosed above, as at 30 September 2020, to the knowledge
of the Directors, none of the Directors or chief executive of the
Company had any interests or short positions in the Shares, underlying
Shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were
required to be: (i) notified to the Company and The Hong Kong
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests and short positions which the Directors and chief
executives were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of
the SFO); (ii) entered in the register kept by the Company pursuant
to Section 352 of the SFO; or (iii) notified to the Company and The
Hong Kong Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

Substantial Shareholders’ Interests in Securities
As at 30 September 2020, to the knowledge of the Directors, the
following persons (other than Directors or chief executives of the
Company) had or were deemed or taken to have interests or short
positions in the Shares or underlying Shares which were required to
be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and
3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register kept
by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO:

Long Position in the Shares

B E X EEE SN FR2020F9H30H - B E E AT
A BMESEERARAETETRAERARAE N
EEmABEE(EERLZBHFMEBEERMNEXVE)
BRD - HERMDIEEERESR: (VRBEESFR
BEEPIEXVEETRESD HBAMNSARRRE
BHIAMEaIAREBEEERETZETHRA
BRBEFFLRBEENBEAKRXEZEERERE R
HEEZRERDNRKR)  (VERRIREBEIEFLHAER
9 535216 78 70 8% PA & R0 B9 4 25 K &2 ¢ sk (i)
RIBEZRETREMEARARRAREBH M Z2EM
KA -

FERFERAREFHNER

R2020F9A30H F BESMA - M TAL(ESH
RABEBITERABBRIN PR sk A8 B A% 1)
ESWEBREREAREZTHFRBEBKGEXV
HE2R3ID MWIEXERMARNAFEE  HHMALXA
AIREEERBEEIFEIB6KETHEENER
MEER AR

RERBFHER

Approximate

Number of percentage of
Shares or the Company's
underlying total number of
Name Nature of interest Shares held issued Shares®
HAEAAT B BT
FrER G =R IR 17 #8 &
HE LB EEME HERAHE BHBEDEE®
Accurate Gain Developments Limited Beneficial owner 2,224,920,458" 27.49%
EmAEA
Tencent Holdings Limited Deemed interest in controlled corporation 955,936,666 11.81%
BERZERERAAE AR AVER 1R A B R &
THL H Limited Beneficial owner 955,936,666? 11.81%
E=EAAN
Proficient Success Limited Beneficial owner 588,984,145 7.27%
EmAaA
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Notes:

(1) As informed by Accurate Gain Developments Limited, it was interested in
778,253,792 Shares in the capacity of a beneficial owner and interested
in 1,446,666,666 Shares in respect of derivate interests under certain
swap funding arrangements with PAG Holdings Limited. Therefore,
Accurate Gain Developments Limited was deemed to have interests in
2,224,920,458 Shares.

As informed by PAG Holdings Limited, through its ultimately controlled
corporations, Pacific Alliance Group Limited, Pacific Alliance Investment
Management Limited, Pacific Alliance Group Asset Management Limited,
Pacific Alliance Asia Opportunity Fund L.P. and PA Eminent Opportunity
VIl Limited, it was deemed to have interest in 1,446,666,666 Shares.

(2) THL H Limited is wholly owned by Tencent Holdings Limited.

(3) Mr. Cheng Tai Po owns 100% of the issued share capital of Proficient
Success Limited.

(4) The percentage shareholding is calculated on the basis of 8,091,892,848
Shares issued as at 30 September 2020.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 September 2020, to the knowledge
of the Directors or chief executives of the Company, no other person
(other than Directors or chief executives of the Company) had, or were
deemed or taken to have interest or short position in the Shares or
underlying Shares which were required to be disclosed to the Company
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or
which were recorded in the register kept by the Company pursuant
to Section 336 of the SFO.
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= H2,224,920,4580% B 19 2 HE = o
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Information on Share Options

Share Option Scheme

The share option scheme adopted by the Company on 4 September
2009 became effective on 30 September 2009 and expired on 29
September 2019 (the “2009 Share Option Scheme”). In light of the
expiration of the 2009 Share Option Scheme, a new share option
scheme was adopted by the shareholders at the annual general
meeting of the Company held on 13 September 2019, after which
the Company obtained the conditional listing approval from The Hong
Kong Stock Exchange on 17 September 2019 (the “2019 Share Option
Scheme”).

No options can further be granted under the 2009 Share Option
Scheme which expired on 13 September 2019. However, as of 30
September 2020, for the outstanding 191,990,000 share options
granted and yet to be exercised under the 2009 Share Option Scheme
remain valid and exercisable in accordance with the terms of the 2009
Share Option Scheme, representing approximately 2.37% of the total
number of issued Shares of the Company as at 30 September 2020.

2009 Share Option Scheme
The major terms of the 2009 Share Option Scheme were summarized
as follows:

1. The purpose of the Share Option Scheme was to provide
incentives to eligible persons for their contribution to the Group
and to enable the Group to recruit high-calibre employees and
attract human resources that are valuable to the Group.

2. The Board may at its discretion grant options to Directors,
employees, officers, agents, consultants or representatives of the
Group.

3- The total number of' Shares which _may be issued upon exercise

of all'share options /granted and yet to be exercised under the
Share Option’ Scheme must not exceed 30% of the Shares in
issue from time to time, The total number of Shares in respect
of options which granted under the Share Option .Scheme
was not permitted to exceed 10% in nominal @mount of the
issued Shares as at the date of commencement of the listing of
Shares on The Hong Kong Stock Exchange unless with the prior
approval from the Shareholders. The Share Option Scheme limit
was refreshed at the annual general meeting of the./Company
held on 21 August 2013.
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The total number of Shares issued upon the exercise of share
options granted under the Share Option Scheme (including
exercised, cancelled and outstanding share options) to each
grantee in any 12-month period up to the date of grant should
not exceed 1% of the issued share capital of the Company as at
the date of grant. Any further grant of share options in excess
of this limit is subject to approval of the Shareholders.

The period during which a share option may be exercised would
be determined by the Directors at their absolute discretion, save
that no share option may be exercised more than 10 years after
grant.

The consideration paid by each grantee for each grant of options
is HK$1.

The exercise price in relation to each share option would be
determined by the Directors at their absolute discretion and
should not be less than the highest of: (i) the official closing
price of the Shares as stated in the daily quotation sheet of The
Hong Kong Stock Exchange on the date of grant; (i) the average
closing price of the Shares as stated in the daily quotation sheets
of The Hong Kong Stock Exchange for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal
value of the Shares on the date of grant.

6.
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The table below summarized the details of the movements in the share  FAZN 3 25 B ] (A AR #5 20094 B8 I% 4 =1 21 1% H BE IR

options granted pursuant to the 2009 Share Option Scheme during M EBFEBMERTRZR
the Reporting Period:

Number of Share Options

BREYA
As at
Date of As at Cancelled/ 30 September  Exercise
Name Grant 1 April 2020 Granted Exercised Lapsed 2020 Price Exercisable Period
120205 120205
£8 REAH 4A18 BRE BT BEH/4H 9A308  fTEE GEE
HK$
BT
Directors
Es
Leung Kwan Yuen Andrew 13/4/2018 1,000,000 - - - 1,000,000 1.81 13/4/12018-12/4/2023
REE 1,000,000 - - - 1,000,000 1.81 13/4/2019-12/4/2024
Li Wai Keung 13/4/2018 1,000,000 - - - 1,000,000 1.81 13/4/2018-12/4/2023
FE® 1,000,000 - - - 1,000,000 1.81 13/4/2019-12/4/2024
Hui Chiu Chung 13/4/2018 1,000,000 - - - 1,000,000 1.81 13/4/2018-12/4/2023
AR 1,000,000 - - - 1,000,000 181 13/4/2019-12/4/2024
Advisers 13/1/2016 39,995,000 - - - 39,995,000 1.528 13/1/2016-12/1/2021
B 39,995,000 - - - 39,995,000 1.528 13/1/2017-12/1/2022
3/7/2017% 40,000,000 - - - 40,000,000 1.52 3/7/2017-2/7/2022
40,000,000 - - - 40,000,000 1.52 3/7/2018-2/7/2023
13/4/2018% 1,000,000 - - - 1,000,000 1.81 13/4/2018-12/4/2023
1,000,000 - - - 1,000,000 1.81 13/412019-12/4/2024
Employees 22/8/2016 11,250,000 - - (3,750,000) 7,500,000 175 22/8/2016-21/8/2021
E& 14,500,000 - - (5,000,000) 9,500,000 1.75 22/8/2017-21/8/2022
3,250,000 - - (1,250,000) 2,000,000 1.75 22/8/2018-21/8/2023
13/4/2018 2,500,000 - - - 2,500,000 1.81 13/4/2019-12/4/2024
2,500,000 - - - 2,500,000 1.81 13/4/2020-12/4/2025
201,990,000 - - (10,000,0000 191,990,000
Notes: Bt 5% -

1. Mr. Fung Sing Hong Stephen resigned as Vice Chairman of the Group 1. BEMEEB2020F4A 1 BRBTEEREFH®
and Executive Director and has been appointed as Senior Adviser of the HITES TEZERAEEZERER -

Group with effect from 1 April 2020.

2. Mr. Yung Wing Ki Samuel retired as Independent Non-Executive Director 2. AXEEAB2020F98 228 IR EBLIEWNTTE
and has been appointed as Honourable Adviser of the Group<with effect FOWEZERARNE ZEEBER -

from 22 September 2020.

3. Details of the Share Option Scheme is set out in note 24 to the financial 3. BREGTENFBERN A B REM 24 -

statements.
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2019 Share Option Scheme
The major terms of the 2019 Share Option Scheme are summarized
as follows:

1. The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to provide incentives
to eligible participants to contribute to the Group, and to enable
the Group to recruit high-calibre employees and attract human
resources that are valuable to the Group.

2. The Board may at its discretion grant options to Directors
(including executive and non-executive Directors), employees,
officers, agents or consultants of the Company or any subsidiary.

3. The total number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all share options granted and yet to be exercised under the
Share Option Scheme and all outstanding options must not
exceed 30% of the Shares in issue from time to time. The total
number of Shares in respect of options which may be granted
under the Share Option Scheme is not permitted to exceed
10% of the issued Shares on adoption date that is 810,722,884
Shares. The maximum number of the Shares available for issue
upon exercise of all share options which may be granted under
the Share Option Scheme is 736,922,884 Shares, representing
approximately 9.10% of the total number of issued shares of
the Company as at 30 September 2020.

4. The total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon
the exercise of share options granted under the Share Option
Scheme (including exercised, cancelled and outstanding share
options) to each grantee in any 12-month period up to the date
of grant shall not exceed 1% of the number of shares in issue
of the Company as at the date of grant. Any further grant of
share options in excess of this limit is subject to approval of the
Shareholders.

5. The period during which a share option may be exercised will
be determined by the Directors at their absolute discretion, save
that no share option may be exercised more than 10 years after
grant.

6. The consideration paid by each grantee for each grant of options
is HK$1.

2019 BB PR RE 5 &l
2019F EREAE M ESERMWENT
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AE 2 PEEITRMHMI10%A15810,722,884
ity - RIBHEREAFSIBETITFREAN
FreEEREMETEMETHROBHE
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The exercise price in relation to each share option will be
determined by the Directors at their absolute discretion and shall
be at least the highest of: (a) the closing price of the Shares
as stated in the daily quotation sheet of The Hong Kong Stock
Exchange on the date of grant, which must be a business day;
and (b) the average closing price of the Shares as stated in the
daily quotation sheets of The Hong Kong Stock Exchange for
the five business days immediately preceding the date of grant.

No further options will be granted under the Share Option
Scheme after the date of expiration. In respect of the options
granted and accepted prior to the date of expiration and not
then exercised, they shall continue to be valid and exercisable
subject to and in accordance with the Share Option Scheme.

The table below summarized the details of the movements in the share
options granted pursuant to the 2019 Share Option Scheme during
the Reporting Period:

W 7

f

Number of Share Options

R

EFEUEREBERESBRENTEE
HEABERTISEENESE @QRHAH
(BAREBERRA)BABXMEBERERMT
Y B (9 U T R (b) E R b A H AT AL
BEHEREBMIAEARERMAINNRKRN

T TAE -

RBRESBIERR » THRE-FPREE
PetE - RIBEBREASLEERRT R
i i B AT B IR Q0 A E B R R TT
ZHBREBAD R R ATITE

SHRARE2019F B IR &R L BK
MEBHFBRERNTRZA:

BREHE
As at
Date of As at Cancelled/ 30 September  Exercise
Name Grant 1 April 2020 Granted Exercised Lapsed 2020 Price Exercisable Period
#2020% #2020F
£ BEBH 4818 BRi B BIE#E/XH 9H30F  fTHE s
HK$
BT
Directors
£
Zhao Lidong 11212020 6,000,000 - - - 6,000,000 1.00 712/2021-6/2/2025
BUR 6,000,000 - - - 6,000,000 1.00 712/2022-6/2/2025
6,000,000 - - - 6,000,000 1.00 7/2/2023-6/2/2025
Cheng Ka Man Carman 71212020 2,600,000 - - - 2,600,000 1.00 712/2021-6/2/2025
BEX 2,600,000 - - - 2,600,000 1.00 712/2022-6/2/2025
2,600,000 - - - 2,600,000 1.00 7/2/2023-6/2/2025
Employees 71212020 16,000,000 - - - 16,000,000 1.00 712/2021-6/2/2025
E& 16,000,000 2 - - 16,000,000 1.00 712/2022-6/2/2025
16,000,000 - - - 16,000,000 1.00 7/2/2023-6/2/2025
73,800,000 ~ - - 73,800,000
Notes: B £

The closing price of the Shares immediately before the date of the share
options granted on 7 February 2020 was HK$0.90 per share.

Details of the Share Option Scheme are set out in note 24 to the
financial statements.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND OTHER IN N
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Code on Corporate Governance Practices

During the Reporting Period, the Company has complied with the
applicable code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG
Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”),
save and except for the following deviation:

Code provision A.6.7 provides that
Directors and other non-executive Directors are equal board members,
and should attend general meetings of the Company. During the
Reporting Period, one independent non-executive Director of the
Company was unable to attend the annual general meeting of the
Company held on 22 September 2020 as he had other prior business
engagement.

independent non-executive

Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of the Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as the guidelines for the directors’
dealing in the securities of the Company. Upon specific enquiries of all
the Directors, each of them confirmed that they have complied with
the required standards set out in the Model Code throughout the six
months ended 30 September 2020.

Change in Information of Directors

The change in the information of Directors since the publication of
the 2019/20 annual report up to the date of this interim report is set
out below pursuant to Rule 13.51(B)(1) of the Listing Rules:

o Mr. Yung Wing Ki Samuel retired as Independent Non-Executive
Director and resigned as a member of Audit Committee of the
Company thereupon, and has been appointed as Honourable
Adviser of the Group with effect from 22 September 2020.

o Mr. Leung Kwan Yuen Andrew was awarded a Grand Bauhinia
Medal by the Government of Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region on 1 October 2020.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee is responsible for the review and supervision of
the Group’s financial reporting process, risk management and internal
controls system and review of the Company’s financial statements.
Their written terms of reference are in line with the provisions under
the CG Code and the roles and responsibilities delegated to the Audit
Committee by the Board.

The Audit Committee consists of Mr. Li Wai Keung as chairman, Mr.
Leung Kwan Yuen Andrew and Mr. Hui Chiu Chung. All of the Audit
Committee members are independent non-executive Directors.
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Review of Interim Results

The unaudited interim results of the Company and its subsidiaries for
the six months ended 30 September 2020 have been reviewed by the
Audit Committee and Ernst & Young, the Company’s independent
auditor, in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Review
Engagements 2410 “Review of Interim Financial Information Performed
by the Independent Auditor of the Entity” issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Listed Securities
During the Reporting Period, the Company and a subsidiary of the
Company repurchased and cancelled part of the senior notes with an
aggregated principal amount of US$167.306 million from the open
market. Details are set out in note 20 to the financial statements.

Save as disclosed above and in notes to financial statements, neither
the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the Reporting
Period.

Interim Dividend

The Board resolved not to declare any interim dividend for the six
months ended 30 September 2020 (30 September 2019: Nil).
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REPORT ON REVIEW OF INTERIM CONDENSED
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR S M IR RFR RS

]
EY:

Ernst & Young TXKEBEFTRIE R Tel E3E: +852 2846 9888
22/F, CITIC Tower BEEDRRFEIR Fax {8 H: +852 2868 4432
1 Tim Mei Avenue h{ERE2218 ey.com
Central, Hong Kong

To the board of directors of China South City Holdings Limited ZHEEHIZERERATEESS

(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Introduction

We have reviewed the interim financial information set out on pages
60 to 108, which comprises the condensed consolidated statement
of financial position of China South City Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) as at 30 September
2020 and the related condensed consolidated statements of profit
or loss, comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows
for the six-month period then ended, and explanatory notes. The
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited require the preparation of a report on interim
financial information to be in compliance with the relevant provisions
thereof and Hong Kong Accounting Standard 34 /Interim Financial
Reporting (“HKAS 34") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA"). The directors of the Company are
responsible for the preparation and presentation of this interim
financial information in accordance with HKAS 34. Our responsibility is
to express a conclusion on this interim financial information based on
our review. Our report is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance
with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose. We
do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

Scope of review

We conducted our review in accordance with Hong Kong Standard
on Review Engagements 2410 Review of Interim Financial Information
Performed by the Independent Auditor of the Entity issued by the
HKICPA. A review of interim financial information consists of making
inquiries, primarily of persons responsible for financial and accounting
matters, and applying analytical and other review procedures. A review
is substantially less in scope than an audit conducted in accordance
with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing and consequently does not
enable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all
significant matters that might be identified in an audit. Accordingly,
we do not express an audit opinion.

Conclusion

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention that causes
us to believe that the interim financial information is not prepared, in
all material respects, in accordance with HKAS 34.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

27 November 2020
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INTERIM CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
RS SRR

For the six months ended 30 September 2020 &k &= 2020459 A30H 1758 A

For the six months
ended 30 September

HZE9A30ALAMEA
2020 2019
20204 20194
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 FET FE T
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REER) (REEFEZ)
REVENUE A 5 7,106,901 5,827,158
Cost of sales 55 & A AR (4,404,229) (3,580,070)
Gross profit ESpAll 2,702,672 2,247,088
Other income and (losses)/gains Ha AR (B8, 5 (88,382) 172,276
Fair value gains on investment properties & & ¥ % N F{E U 2§ 5 23,044 278,361
Selling and distribution expenses HEMDHEAX (236,376) (323,881)
Administrative expenses THRAX (511,112) (555,651)
Other expenses H A F 2 (199,159) (94,383)
Finance costs B & P AR 6 (346,670) (302,333)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX B A1 A 7 1,344,017 1,421,477
Income tax expenses Fris fi b & 8 (690,992) (791,236)
PROFIT FOR THE PERIOD HA 9 F 5 653,025 630,241
Attributable to: T &7 EA
Owners of the parent IS/NSIE7 PN 653,542 628,170
Non-controlling interests FEE R (517) 2,071
653,025 630,241
EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE SERSARZERER
TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF BEAZERER
THE PARENT 9
Basic H K
- For profit for the period - B F) HE HK8.08 cents & {ll  HK7.75 cents /&1l
Diluted 5
~ For profit for the period - I A8 HK8.08 cents &1l  HK7.75 cents 71l
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INTERIM CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FHIfEGE 2B ER

For the six months ended 30 September 2020 & Z=20204F9A30H 17X 18 A

For the six months
ended 30 September

B Z9H30H L <A
2020 2019
2020F 20194
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TET
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REER) (REEZ)
PROFIT FOR THE PERIOD B F B 653,025 630,241
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS) Htt2EWB A (E8)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) that may be BREEBBEBRAIEES A
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent EEZMEMEEEA
periods: (E#H) :
Exchange differences on translation of foreign BREGINEBHEL =T
operations 2,221,641 (2,483,907)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS) MABRBEEMEEBA
FOR THE PERIOD, NET OF TAX (E1#8) 2,221,641 (2,483,907)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS) HArEZERA(BE)
FOR THE PERIOD 2,874,666 (1,853,666)
Attributable to: T 5% T FEAG
Owners of the parent [SR/NCIETF N 2,871,892 (1,850,538)
Non-controlling interests FEFE R ME 2 2,774 (3,128)
2,874,666 (1,853,666)

China South City Holdings Limited &% RARQ
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INTERIM CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AR AR S B AR R =

As at 30 September 2020 #202049H30H

30 September 31 March
2020 2020
2020F 20204
9A30H 3H31H
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt 5% FERT FA&T
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REHEZR) (&&EZ)
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M- BERZRE 1 1,376,729 1,451,308
Investment properties "EME 12 53,050,601 50,873,673
Right-of-use assets ERAEEE 1,259,430 1,424,217
Properties under development BERAPYE 13 1,262,398 1,120,379
Goodwill A = 34,128
Financial assets at fair value through BERBEARFENNEZ
profit or loss EREE 16 8,862 8,524
Other long-term receivables Hfh = HAfE W FIR 372,799 587,944
Deposits paid for purchase of land use B & + 3 fF A A
rights Ze 30,983 29,799
Deferred tax assets BB IBEE 3,459,269 3,550,178
Total non-current assets EMBEE LA 60,821,071 59,080,150
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Properties held for finance lease HIERmMEREWE 14 266,138 259,431
Properties held for sale BIEHEME 14 39,001,480 40,065,384
Inventories rE 95,200 109,087
Trade receivables FEUE 5 8RR 15 653,540 560,891
Contract assets BHEE - 161,830
Prepayments, other receivables and TER FRIE - E A R U FRIE
other assets N H A& 7 3,532,657 2,536,396
Financial assets at fair value through BRBEAQNFEIEKZ
profit or loss TRMEE 16 301,970 357,342
Cash and bank balances e RRITHER 17 10,263,762 10,303,541
Total current assets MEEERE 54,114,747 54,353,902
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBAEE
Trade and other payables B 5 Kk E A T FRIE 18 12,158,449 15,589,798
Contract liabilities aHBE 15,568,516 15,578,700
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings st ER1T N EMEE 19 6,939,952 8,200,428
Senior notes BERIE 20 7,785,255 5,356,119
Medium-term notes RHRIR 21 58,038 55,820
Domestic company bonds RANARES 22 1,259,938 1,277,098
Financial liabilities at fair value through  #EBEEZUAAFETIEKZ
profit or loss THAEE 16 55,887 -
Tax payables JE P B 18 4,340,012 4,241,087
Total current liabilities RBBEEER 48,166,047 50,299,050
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEEREE 5,948,700 4,054,852
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT EERERRDERE
LIABILITIES 66,769,771 63,135,002
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Interim Condensed Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (Continued)

A BR AR & B R O 3Rk ()

As at 30 September 2020 #202099H30H

30 September 31 March
2020 2020
20204 2020%4F
9A30H 3A31H
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 THET FAE T
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEX) (EFEZ)
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES kRBEE
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings st ER1T N EtEE 19 10,248,240 8,920,685
Senior notes BERE 20 8,233,576 8,963,385
Medium-term notes I E R 21 648,329 651,847
Domestic company bonds RBRARIES 22 341,400 328,350
Other long-term payables H b= HE 55,690 122,732
Deferred tax liabilities EEHIBEBE 9,748,795 9,265,483
Total non-current liabilities mBaEasE 29,276,030 28,252,482
Net assets BEEFE 37,493,741 34,882,520
EQUITY FE &=
Equity attributable to owners of the NEHBAEEER
parent
Share capital & Z< 23 7,222,312 7,222,312
Other reserves H s 30,258,206 27,610,414
37,480,518 34,832,726
Non-controlling interests IE 17 A% #E & 13,223 49,794
Total equity EEEE 37,493,741 34,882,520

China South City Holdings Limited &% RARQ
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INTERIM CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

RS ER S BIR

For the six months ended 30 September 2020 &k &= 2020459 A30H 1758 A

Attributable to owners of the parent

SRAEBAER
Statutory Share Exchange Non-
Share surplus option fluctuation Capital Revaluation  Retained controlling Total
capital reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total interests equity
EERH  BERE ERARD SRR
A f# f# #F EXEE EfEE RENE @t En EBRARE
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000
TExL TET TExn TEL TAR TET TEL TEL TAR TEL
At 1 April 2019 (audited) R2019F4A1B (I E %) 7222312 2,595,496 161,821 (971,340) (275,841) 286,456 26,971,689 35,990,593 159,234 36,149,827
Profit for the period Eaaibe - - - - - - 68170 628170 2071 630,241
Other comprehensive loss for the — HREM2EEE:
period:
Exchange differences on translation ¥ E S E
of foreign operations EXZEE - - - (2,478,708) - - - (2,478,708) (5199) (2,483,907
Total comprehensive loss 2EFELE - - - (2,478,708) - - 628,170 (1,850,538) (3,128) (1,853,666)
Shares repurchased A E - - - - - - (10379 (10,379 - (10,379)
Acquisition of non-controlling WS R &
interests - - - - 22,278 - - 22,278 (84,776) (62,498)
Equity-settled share option NEEEER
arrangement ERERHE - - 1,006 - - - - 1,006 - 1,006
Transfer of share option reserve BRI R SRR
upon the forfeiture or lapse of BREREGE
share options - - (80,897) - - - 80,897 - - -
Final 2018/19 dividend 2018/19K H % & - - - - - - (405,361)  (405,361) - (405,361)
Transfer from retained profits BRARBHE - 65827 - - - - (65,827 - - -
At 30 September 2019 7201949A30H
(unaudited) (REER) 7,222,312 2,661,323 81,930  (3,450,048) (253,563) 286,456 27,199,189 33,747,599 71,330 33,818,929
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Interim Condensed Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (Continued)

hHISRGREREE R ER(E)

For the six months ended 30 September 2020 & Z=20204F9A30H 17X 18 A

Attributable to owners of the parent

BARAERAELS

Statutory Share  Exchange Non-
Share  surplus  option fluctuation  Capital Revaluation Retained controlling Total
capital  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve reserve  profits Total interests equity
EEBS BRE EXRY FER
R & i i wE EXRE Efifife RENE @ BE ERAR
Notes ~ HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt 7% TEx FExz TE=x TExT THEzR FRT TERT TET TR FET
At 1 April 2020 (audited) 74202054718
(BER) 7,222,312 2,999,582 78,433 (4,360,460) (250,283) 286,456 28,856,686 34,832,726 49,794 34,882,520
Profit for the period BAFE - - - - - - 653,542 653,542 (517) 653,025
Other comprehensive BREMEZERA:
income for the period:
Exchange differences on BEBNEBR
translation of foreign ERER
operations = = - 2,218,350 = = - 2,218,350 3,291 2,221,641
Total comprehensive 2EMNELSR
income = = - 2,218,350 = - 653,542 2,871,892 2,774 2,874,666
Acquisition of non- W B SR R AR B 5
controlling interests = = = - 15577 = = 15,577  (42,677) (27,100)
Disposal of subsidiaries RENBAF = - - (1,010) - - - (1,010) 3,332 2,322
Equity-settled share option Az & H )
arrangement BRERH 2% - - 4,090 - - - - 4,090 - 4,090
Transfer of share option BRI & m
reserve upon the HRERERE
forfeiture or lapse of
share options = = (3,905) = = = 3,905 = = =
Final 2019/20 dividend 201920K # ik 8 10 = - - - - - (242,757) (242,757) - (242,757)
At 30 September 2020 72020694308
(unaudited) (REER) 7,222,312 2,999,582*  78,618* (2,143,120)* (234,706)* 286,456* 29,271,376* 37,480,518 13,223 37,493,741
* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated other reserves of — * ZERBERLEPHEASESVBARARMEHN
HK$30,258,206,000 (31 March 2020: HK$27,610,414,000) in the interim 47 & H i 7 $530,258,206,0007% JT (202043 A31

condensed consolidated statement of financial position.

H :27,610,414,0008 T) ©
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INTERIM CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FHISRRSRERER

For the six months ended 30 September 2020 &k &= 2020459 A30H 1758 A

For the six months
ended 30 September

B Z9H30R L@ A
2020 2019
20204 20194
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt 5 FTEx T
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(RBER) (REEZ)
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES KETHEERE
Profit before tax BN UDE 1,344,017 1,421,477
Adjustments for: P EE
Finance costs AR AR 6 346,670 302,333
Interest income B U A 5 (29,843) (82,693)
Loss on disposal of property, plant and EEME - BER
equipment BB EE 7 75 101
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment M- BEERRERE 7 66,682 61,297
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FHREEENE 7 47,227 39,032
Changes in fair value of investment properties KEYWEQNTFEZS 5 (23,044) (278,361)
Impairment of trade receivables FEWE 5 BR BORE 7 106,602 58,222
Impairment of financial assets included in ATRTEA A - A
prepayments, other receivables and other FEWRIE R Bt & B
assets and other long-term receivables N H & R R IR
Z 2 EE ERE 7 13,884 -
Impairment of goodwill AR R E 7 34,128 .
Fair value losses on financial assets/liabilities at BBERARFEYE
fair value through profit or loss, net CEBMEBEE/BE
NFEEBE - FE 5 96,122 8,531
Losses on disposal of subsidiaries EEMBAREE 5 57,505 12
Gains on repurchase of the senior notes CEELEE W= 5 (20,062) (18,177)
Losses/(gains) on redemption/repurchase of Bl EEEESLS
the asset-backed securities BHE2EE(WKE) 5 9,111 (19,510)
Equity-settled share option expense VATE 25 45 B o B IR e
L3 7 4,090 1,006
2,053,164 1,493,270
Change in properties held for finance lease HIEREHERHEEME
and sale ZE 1 3,847,285 109,936
Change in inventories FEz%1t 18,223 8,793
Change in trade receivables BB ZERZE 1t (190,843) 357,673
Change in contract assets EHEEZE 168,262 (2,584)
Change in other long-term receivables EmREAEUWIE 2 E 1t 238,512 (221,721)
Change in prepayments, other receivables and TERTFRIE - A A U IE
other assets REMEE 221 (1,070,406) (51,561)
Change in restricted cash ZRER e 22k 499,157 59,260
Change in contract liabilities aHaEZE 1t (553,244) 1,207,385
Change in pledged time deposits in connection L& FTE B AR RO B B 1
with cooperation projects EHTFRZEE 818,770 -
Change in trade and other payables B R EMENKIEZ
it (4,039,847) 1,792,067
Cash generated from operations rEMENHRS 1,789,033 4,752,518
Taxes paid BT I8 (404,852) (737,165)
Net cash flows from operating activities KEFEHRESRMAFE 1,384,181 4,015,353
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Interim Condensed Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)

HHFRGERERER(E)

For the six months ended 30 September 2020 & Z=20204F9A30H 17X 18 A

For the six months
ended 30 September

B Z9A30H L <{EA
2020 2019
20204 20194
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5% FERT FET
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REEER) (CREEEZR)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES RETHRERE
Purchases of property, plant and equipment BEME BELZE (27,301) (15,101)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and HEWE BELKE
equipment FriS 3R 2,056 6,197
Net cash inflow on purchase/disposal of financial Eﬁ,\/ﬁgﬁi@ﬁéu
assets at fair value through profit or loss AFEIEzZEHEE
WEIFEMA 28,725 108,651
Cash outflow from disposal of subsidiaries, net BEEMBARESFE
i (5.644) (12)
Additions to properties under development BRAMERE (257,484) (1,588,850)
Interests received 2 UF & 29,843 82,693
Decrease in time deposits with maturity of BAEB=EAN S
more than three months TE B 1F 3K 232,773 -
Net cash flows from/(used in) investing activities BETHEESRAS
ORH) %% 2,968 (1,406,422)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES METHESARE
Issue of domestic company bonds BITRARBIES = 1,566,839
Issue of medium-term notes BITHEIRE = 661,169
Issue of senior notes BOTELARER 4,304,542 473,241
Payment of interests BT FR (1,565,708) (1,497,275)
Repayment of medium-term notes EBEPHEER - (2,217,200)
Repayment of domestic company bonds BEEBEANFE = (1,584,380)
Repayment of senior notes BEELEZEE 20 (1,568,581) -
Repurchase of senior notes EEEBLEE 20 (1,146,452) (273,674)
Repayment and redemption of asset-backed EENENEESFFS
securities 19 (390,619) -
Redemption of corporate bonds BO®EES - (534)
New bank and other borrowings HERITRHEMER 7,282,396 6,451,417
Repayment of bank and other borrowings EERTREMER (7,306,740) (5,563,351)
Shares repurchased 5] B % 19 = (10,379)
Acquisition of non-controlling interests W FE R IR = (27,100) (62,498)
Principal portion of lease payments YRBEENEKEIHD (33,552) (22,879)
Net cash flows used in financing activities B &S BN IR & L FE (451,814) (2,079,504)
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH ReRESEEYEN
EQUIVALENTS ok 935,335 529,427
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period E;W)]E’ini&ﬁ ME% 3,537,611 5,933,832
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net EXESETEFE 306,680 (382,184)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS BRNREREESESEY
AT END OF PERIOD 17 4,779,626 6,081,075
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND REeRESEEYHEH
CASH EQUIVALENTS oM
Cash and cash equivalents ReMBEFEY 17 4,779,626 6,081,075
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Corporate Information

China South City Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is a limited
liability company incorporated in Hong Kong. The registered
office of the Company is located at Suites 3306—08, 33/F,
Tower 5, The Gateway, 15 Canton Road, Tsim Sha Tsui,
Kowloon, Hong Kong. The principal activities of the Company
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) are
described in note 4.

Basis of Preparation and Other Information
Basis of Preparation

The interim condensed consolidated financial information for
the six months ended 30 September 2020 has been prepared
in accordance with Hong Kong Accounting Standard (“HKAS")
34 Interim Financial Reporting.

The interim condensed consolidated financial information does
not include all the information and disclosures required in the
annual financial statements, and should be read in conjunction
with the Group’s annual consolidated financial statements for
the year ended 31 March 2020.

Other Information

The financial information relating to the year ended 31 March
2020 that is included in the interim condensed consolidated
statement of financial position as comparative information does
not constitute the Company’s statutory annual consolidated
financial statements for that year but is derived from those
financial statements. Further information relating to these
statutory financial statements required to be disclosed in
accordance with section 436 of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance is as follows:

The Company has delivered the financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2020 to the Registrar of Companies as required
by section 662(3) of, and Part 3 of Schedule 6 to, the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

The Company’s auditor has reported on those financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2020. The auditor’s
report was unqualified; did not include a reference to any
matters to which the auditor drew attention by way of emphasis
without qualifying its report; and did not contain a statement
under sections 406(2), 407(2) or 407(3) of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.
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NOTES TO INTERIM CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL INFORMATION
TR S I E BB EE

For the six months ended 30 September 2020 &k &= 2020459 A30H 1758 A
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Notes to Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Information (Continued)

w5 5 BR 4R S B 76 3 B R (D

For the six months ended 30 September 2020 & Z=20204F9A30H 17X 18 A

Changes in Accounting Policies and Disclosures

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the interim
condensed consolidated financial information are consistent
with those applied in the preparation of the Group’s annual
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2020, except for the adoption of the following revised Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) for the first time
for the current period’s financial information.

Amendments to HKFRS 3

Amendments to HKFRS 9,
HKAS 39, and HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKAS 1
and HKAS 8

Definition of a Business

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform

COVID-19-Related Rent
Concessions (early adopted)

Definition of Material

The nature and impact of the revised HKFRSs are described
below:

(a

Amendments to HKFRS 3 clarify and provide additional
guidance on the definition of a business. The amendments
clarify that for an integrated set of activities and assets to
be considered a business, it must include, at a minimum,
an input and a substantive process that together
significantly contribute to the ability to create output. A
business can exist without including all of the inputs and
processes needed to create outputs. The amendments
remove the assessment of whether market participants are
capable of acquiring the business and continue to produce
outputs. Instead, the focus is on whether acquired
inputs and acquired substantive processes together
significantly contribute to the ability to create outputs. The
amendments have also narrowed the definition of outputs
to focus on goods or services provided to customers,
investment income or other income from ordinary
activities. Furthermore, the amendments provide guidance
to assess whether an acquired process is substantive and
introduce an optional fair value concentration test to
permit a simplified assessment of whether an acquired set
of activities and assets is not a business. The Group has
applied the amendments prospectively to transactions or
other events that occurred on or after 1 April 2020. The
amendments did not have any impact on the financial
position and performance of the Group.

SHBENEEREE
HREPHERREEEREREANN ST
B R R K = B & £2020F3831H IEF
ERFEEGAMERREMERSE — B &
HAHEPEENERNEMNNATEER
ERYEHREEL([HBMBRELER )RR
G o

& BB A s A 28| EEHTE
FEIRMEFT A

& BB A5 R & 28 FIEEENE
Fosk - B G
Bl 55395 [
& B B 15 3R & 2 A
FETHR MBI A

& BB R & A FT T A B
F165RM S FT A 12 R

(FEFTER A7)
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Notes to Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Information (Continued)

w5 5 BR R 5 B R 3 B R (4D

For the six months ended 30 September 2020 &k &= 2020459 A30H 1758 A

3. Changes in Accounting Policies and Disclosures
(Continued)

(b)

(d)

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7 address
the effects of interbank offered rate reform on financial
reporting. The amendments provide temporary reliefs
which enable hedge accounting to continue during
the period of uncertainty before the replacement of
an existing interest rate benchmark. In addition, the
amendments require companies to provide additional
information to investors about their hedging relationships
which are directly affected by these uncertainties. The
amendments did not have any impact on the financial
position and performance of the Group as the Group does
not have any interest rate hedge relationships.

Amendment to HKFRS 16 provides a practical expedient
for lessees to elect not to apply lease modification
accounting for rent concessions arising as a direct
consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic. The practical
expedient applies only to rent concessions occurring
as a direct consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic
and only if (i) the change in lease payments results in
revised consideration for the lease that is substantially
the same as, or less than, the consideration for the lease
immediately preceding the change; (ii) any reduction in
lease payments affects only payments originally due on
or before 30 June 2021; and (iii) there is no substantive
change to other terms and conditions of the lease. The
amendment is effective retrospectively for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 June 2020 with earlier application
permitted. The amendments did not have any significant
impact on the financial position and performance of the
Group.

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 provide a new
definition of material. The new definition states that
information is material if omitting, misstating or obscuring
it could reasonably be expected to influence decisions that
the primary users of general purpose financial statements
make on the basis of those financial statements. The
amendments clarify that materiality will depend on the
nature or magnitude of information. The amendments did
not have any impact on the Group's interim condensed
consolidated financial information.
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Notes to Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Information (Continued)

w5 5 BR 4R S B 76 3 B R (D

For the six months ended 30 September 2020 & Z=20204F9A30H 17X 18 A

Operating Segment Information

During the six months ended 30 September 2020, the Group
has changed the structure of its internal management in
a manner that changes the compositions of its reportable
segments mainly by combining property investment business and
property management business. In addition, the E-commerce
segment has been combined into the “others” segment, and the
revenue from property leasing operation of furniture market has
been transferred from the property investment segment to the
“others” segment. As a result, the corresponding information for
the six months ended 30 September 2019, has been restated.

For management purposes, the Group is organized into business
units based on their products and services and has three
reportable operating segments as follows:

(i) the property development segment engages in the
development of integrated logistics and trade centers and
residential and commercial ancillary facilities;

4.

geEsHER

R & E2020F9A308 1L ~EA - AEEE
BEHAANDEREL FREHMERE
MY EERERNEEAEZHRD L ARK -
peoh  BEFABEEB A FEIEMID I -
BRAMBNMERELEEB LR MER
EnHEBE[Hin ] HE0 - Bt - #ZE2019
FORA30RILEAEANEEEREEY -

REEME  AREREERERBEDR
TR EBEN - I A AT =187 B &R &
B

iy YVEERIBRFERGESURLDE
mRGPOREETREELER M

(i) the property investment and management segment invests (i) YERERBEESHFERESZEYR R
in integrated logistics and trade centers and residential Piﬁuﬂux%qﬂ/u E%&%%@EE?&M
and commercial ancillary facilities and provision of RIEEMEEE RS &

property management services; and

(iii)  the "others” segment comprises, principally, the provision
of logistics and warehousing services, outlet operations,
micro-credit services, E-commerce services and other
services.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions about
resource allocation and performance assessment. Segment
performance is evaluated based on reportable segment profit/
loss, which is a measure of adjusted profit/loss before tax.
The adjusted profit/loss before tax is measured consistently
with the Group's profit before tax except that interest income,
finance costs, fair value gains/losses on financial assets/liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss, unallocated head office
and corporate expenses, unallocated income and gains and
unallocated cost of sales are excluded from this measurement.

Segment assets exclude cash and bank balances and other
unallocated head office and corporate assets as these assets are
managed on a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings, senior notes, medium-term notes, domestic
company bonds, tax payables and other unallocated head office
and corporate liabilities as these liabilities are managed on a
group basis.
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Notes to Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Information (Continued)
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For the six months ended 30 September 2020 &k &= 2020459 A30H 1758 A

4. Operating Segment Information (Continued)
No geographical segment analysis is presented as the majority
of the assets and operations of the Group are located in the
People’s Republic of China (“PRC"), which is considered as one
geographical location in an economic environment with similar
risks and returns.

There were no sales to a single customer which amounted to 10%
or more of the Group’s revenue during the six months ended 30
September 2020 (six months ended 30 September 2019: Nil).

4, RESIER (B

HRANEENKRTEDEER

R

L7

(248 2 B > B LR B e [B] S 0 4R B 3R 35
M—EmECE) ARELEZFHIE D

WA -

H £2020F9A30B FNE A - WEE—F
FHEHEBARNER WA TEB10% A £ (F

Z20194F98308 IE /Nl A : ) o

Property
Property investment and

Six months ended B 2202059A30A development ~ management Others Total
30 September 2020 AR NERE NEREREE Htth @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER THER
(Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REEHK) (REEHK) (REEHK) (REEHK)
Segment revenue: AHYA:
Sales to external customers HINBEFPHEE 5,783,395 748,688 574,818 7,106,901
Segment results before increase in fair value BREMELTEEMR
of investment properties and impairment of EERENSHEE
goodwill 1,977,160 498,933 291,661 2,767,754
Increase in fair value of investment properties REMEDTEEN - 23,044 - 23,044
Impairment of goodwill BEHE - - (34,129) (34,129)
Segment results after increase in fair value of BREMELNTEEMR
investment properties and impairment of EERERIDEE
goodwill 1,977,160 521,977 257,533 2,756,670
Unallocated cost of sales KABEEKA (65,082)
Interest income FIEMA 29,843
Fair value losses on financial assets/liabilities at FRERNATEIEZ
fair value through profit or loss, net SREE/AENATE
BE 8 (96,122)
Unallocated income and gains YN 35,402
Unallocated expenses RAAOBREX (970,024)
Finance costs BEKA (346,670)
Profit before tax BRI 1,344,017
As at 30 September 2020 #2020£9H30A
Segment assets THEE 45,700,740 52,558,139 2,474,271 100,733,150
Reconciliation: k-
Unallocated assets ROREE 14,202,668
Total assets BELE 114,935,818
Segment liabilities THEE 20,769,942 8,183,362 923,015 29,876,319
Reconciliation: k-
Unallocated liabilities FAERERE 47,565,758
Total liabilities AEEE 71,442,077
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Notes to Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Information (Continued)
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For the six months ended 30 September 2020 & Z=20204F9A30H 17X 18 A

4. Operating Segment Information (Continued) 4. RETHER @)
Property
Property investment and
Six months ended B £2019%9A30H development management Others Total
30 September 2019 IER1EA NERR VNERAREE Aty )
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET TET
(Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REER) (REER) (REER) (REER)
(Restated) (Restated)
(BE7) (BE7)
Segment revenue: AHYA:
Sales to external customers HONBRFHE 4,630,099 660,834 536,225 5,827,158
Segment results before increase in fair value of RENELTEEMA
investment properties RS 1,723,175 481,086 173,523 2,377,784
Increase in fair value of investment properties BREMELTEEM - 278,361 - 278,361
Segment results after increase in fair value of RENELTEEME
investment properties PHEE 1,723,175 759,447 173,523 2,656,145
Unallocated cost of sales APEHERE (130,696)
Interest income MEKA 82,693
Fair value losses on financial assets at fair value BRBRAATEIE SR
through profit or loss, net EEQTERE 38 (8,531)
Unallocated income and gains AABRBARK & 98,114
Unallocated expenses AOBRET (973,915)
Finance costs RERAK (302,333)
Profit before tax A 1,421,477
As at 31 March 2020 (Audited) R2020%3A318 (BEH)
Segment assets THEE 47527,066 49,932,093 2,468,746 99,927,905
Reconailiation: -
Unallocated assets AOBREE 13,506,147
Total assets EEZE 113,434,052
Segment liabilities 2HaE 18,865,279 7,830,825 998,545 27,694,649
Reconciliation: Hik-
Unallocated liabilities roRakE 50,856,883
Total liabilities BEEE 78,551,532
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For the six months ended 30 September 2020 &k &= 2020459 A30H 1758 A

5.

Revenue, Other Income and (Losses)/Gains,
Fair Value Gains on Investment Properties

An analysis of revenue is as follows:

5.

WA HttW AR (F5E) K -
REVMEQIFERSE
WARHAT

For the six months ended
30 September

HZE9A30A L AEA
2020 2019
20204 20194F
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#& T FET
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REERZ) (REEFEZ)
Revenue from contracts with customers EEAHWA 6,487,555 5,267,163

Revenue from other sources " R U A

Rental Income AERA 413,417 336,268
Finance lease income mMEMEEKA 6,428 26,345
Others Hi 199,501 197,382
619,346 559,995
7,106,901 5,827,158

Above include amounts of HK$223,050,000 (six months ended
30 September 2019: HK$201,303,000) related to income from
outlet operations and HK$203,273,000 (six months ended 30
September 2019: HK$196,392,000) related to income from

logistics and warehousing services.
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Notes to Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Information (Continued)
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5. Revenue, Other Income and (Losses)/Gains,
Fair Value Gains on Investment Properties
(Continued)

Disaggregated revenue information for
revenue from contracts with customers

For the six months ended 30 September 2020

5. WA HttBAR(EER), i -

BREVMELAFEKRRE &)

BEFEABANIBERAES

B £2020F9AH30H IE <@ A

Property
investment
Property and
development management Others Total
MERE
Segments o & MEZR KERE Hit 5t
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT THER TERT THER
(Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REER) (RBER) (REEKR) (REER)
Timing of revenue recognition LON: 4530
Revenue recognized at a point in time EXE-BHEIKA 5,776,967 = 284,856 6,061,823
Revenue recognized over time R—BERABRKA - 335,271 90,461 425,732
Total revenue from contracts with BEPAHRA
customers 5,776,967 335,271 375,317 6,487,555
For the six months ended 30 September 2019 B Z£2019F9A30H L < {@ B
Property
investment
Property and
development  management Others Total
MERE
Segments 2 & V) % 3% R RER Hit @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THAT TAT THAT TET
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)  (Unaudited)  (Unaudited)
CREER)  (REBER) (REER) (REER)
Timing of revenue recognition WA B R
Revenue recognized at a point in time EXE-BEHERRA 4,603,754 - 227,826 4,831,580
Revenue recognized over time R—EBERAEREA - 324,566 111,017 435,583
Total revenue from contracts with BEPEHRA
customers 4,603,754 324,566 338,843 5,267,163
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For the six months ended 30 September 2020 &k &= 2020459 A30H 1758 A

Revenue, Other Income and (Losses)/Gains, 5.
Fair Value Gains on Investment Properties

(Continued)

Disaggregated revenue information for
revenue from contracts with customers

(Continued)

Notes to Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Information (Continued)

w5 5 BR R 5 B R 3 B R (4D

WA BElAR(EBE) WH -
BREWMERLAFERRZ B

EEFEHBRANDERAER @)

For the six months ended
30 September

H ZEZ9H30HLEEA
2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FE T
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REER) (REFE%)
Other income Hib g A
Interest income R B U A 29,843 82,693
Government grants* K 7T 475 B * 9,322 30,113
Others EAfh 16,141 36,995
55,306 149,801
(Losses)/gains (B8,
Fair value losses on financial assets/liabilities BEBEZARNFENNEZ
at fair value through profit or loss, net CREE/BENQFE
B FE (96,122) (8,531)
Losses on disposal of subsidiaries EEMBARZEE (57,505) (12)
(Losses)/gains on redemption/repurchase of B,/ EEEEIEESZ
asset-backed securities (note 19) (E518) U 25 (Bt #£E19) (9,111) 19,510
Gains on repurchase of senior note (note 20) [0l & 8 %t = 4% 2 U =5 (K1 5£20) 20,062 18,177
Exchange losses, net FEHEE F8E (1,012) (6,669)
(143,688) 22,475
(88,382) 172,276
Fair value gains on investment properties ®REWEQAFEWZ 23,044 278,361
3 Various government grants have been received from the relevant * TR AEBBTRMSE TASE -

government authorities to foster and support the development

of the relevant projects of the Group in Mainland China. There

are no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies relating to these

grants.
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Notes to Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Information (Continued)
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For the six months ended 30 September 2020 & Z=20204F9A30H 17X 18 A

6. Finance Costs
An analysis of finance costs is as follows:

B E A
MERAZAHMT :

For the six months ended
30 September

consolidated statement of profit or loss.

B ZE9H30R LA
2020 2019
20205 20194
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FHE T
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REER) (CREEEZR)
Interest on bank and other borrowings HITRHEMEEF B
(including senior notes, medium-term notes, (BRREEEERE  PHERE -
domestic company bonds and short-term BARRESFREHBESR)
notes) 1,601,466 1,339,904
Interest on lease liabilities HEGERNE 3,295 3,197
1,604,761 1,343,101
Less: Interest capitalized W B A A B (1,258,091) (1,040,768)
Total #Et 346,670 302,333
7. Profit Before Tax 7.  BiATF E
The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/ AEFBNHBAFAEE NG, GtA) T3 &
(crediting): I8 :
For the six months ended
30 September
EZ9H30R LA
2020 2019
202045 20194F
HK$'000 HK$'000
T T
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REER) (CREEEZR)
Cost of properties sold EEYE AR 3,803,046 2,897,055
Cost of properties held for finance lease [N =W 3,189 9,869
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ¥ HBELRZETE 66,923 61,463
Less: Depreciation capitalized in respect of W ERPYMEMNERL
properties under development e (241) (166)
66,682 61,297
Depreciation of right-of-use assets CHEEENE 47,227 39,032
Lease payments not included in the measurement KA EBEFENTHE
of lease liabilities 3% 4,167 4,463
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment HEWE - WEXL
® 2 B 1A 75 101
Impairment of trade receivables* EUWE SRR BE 106,602 58,222
Equity-settled share option expense VA RE 5 45 55 6 B AR B =2 4,090 1,006
Impairment of financial assets included in STATERFRIA - Hfth FE UL
prepayments, other receivables and other assets RIEREMEE R HEA
and other long-term receivables* REIEWRFIE 22 H5t
BERE" 13,884 -
Impairment of goodwill* EESNAEN 34,128 -
* Included in “Other expenses” in the interim condensed @ FIARHERFEERR [ HMAXIERA -

China South City Holdings Limited &% RARQ
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Notes to Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Information (Continued)
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For the six months ended 30 September 2020 &k &= 2020459 A30H 1758 A

8. Income Tax Expenses
Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of
16.5% (six months ended 30 September 2019: 16.5%) on the
estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during the
period. No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made
as the Group had no assessable profits arising in Hong Kong
during the period (six months ended 30 September 2019: Nil).

Taxes on profits assessable in Mainland China are calculated at
the rates of tax prevailing in the provinces in which the Group
operates.

Under the relevant income tax law, the PRC subsidiaries are
subject to corporate income tax at the statutory rate of 25%
(six months ended 30 September 2019: 25%) on their respective
taxable income during the period.

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC, a PRC
subsidiary of the Group obtained the High and New Technology
Enterprises qualification. Accordingly, it enjoyed a preferential
income tax rate of 15% during the period (six months ended
30 September 2019: 15%).

The PRC land appreciation tax (“LAT”) is levied at progressive
rates ranging from 30% to 60% on the appreciation of land
value, being the proceeds from the sale of properties less
deductible expenditures including land cost, borrowing costs and
all property development expenditures.

EMEAX

RAERE  BBFEHIBREESELENG
= SR 0t 9% 16.5% (B 220199 H30H
WEREA - 16.5%) R R TR - RAHIR -
HRAEBBEREESMNEZRHEAE - &
W AR BB RSB (BLE2201949A30
BIENEA: &) -

B KRR ERTUE N B IR RAEEE
LEEAMOBRITHER -

REBEBABTOE - RAHRE - FEHEA
BIZATL & BRI AIREE R T25% (B
Z 2019498308 LE /<18 F : 25%) & 4 1 %
FR1SHE

RIEFRABREEGRER  NEB—RPEH
MBARBSEMEMEEER - At - %
REIRAHEZBEBEBEREI5% (HE
20194F9A30H IE/S{@ A : 15%) °

R £ 3 I B IR30% E260% N SR R EF
T EEBIVMEHEMNBRERBE
THRA BEERARIBENEERAXE
A BT H R P ) 38 E UK o

For the six months ended
30 September

HZE9A30R 1L ~EA
2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FH& T
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)

(REE %) (REEZ)

Current: BOER :
Mainland China corporate income tax PR RKBEREMSEH 181,020 360,370
LAT in Mainland China FRER A P+ 3 (B B 154,213 429,874
Deferred: iIE 3T -
Mainland China corporate income tax FEABEREMESH 382,738 93,580
LAT in Mainland China HB K B IR E B (38,553) (107,469)
Withholding tax on dividends i% B 7B 0 11,574 14,881
Total tax charged for the period AR IBE S HEsE 690,992 791,236
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For the six months ended 30 September 2020 & Z=20204F9A30H 17X 18 A

9. Earnings Per Share Attributable to Ordinary
Equity Holders of the Parent
The calculation of the basic earnings per share is based on the
profit for the period attributable to ordinary equity holders of
the parent, and the weighted average number of ordinary shares
in issue during the period.

No adjustment has been made to the basic earnings per share
amount presented for the six months ended 30 September 2020
and 2019 in respect of a dilution as the impact of the share
options outstanding had an anti-dilutive effect on the basic
earnings per share amounts presented.

The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share are

BERBARAEBERERZFRA
pASY &K
SREXBRFDRESATNLBRERSF
BAREAE EB PR R A E B AT m A A
BTHBE -

MRERITEZBREARBEZE &
I % i #8588 £ 20204 X 201949H30R
EREAMEZINZEREARN S BELH

= .

BREARBERNOAELER:

based on:
For the six months ended
30 September
B Z9H30H L <EA
2020 2019
20204F 20194F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTERT FAET
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REER) (CREEEZR)
Earnings BF

Profit attributable to ordinary equity holders AR EEREARY #EEF
of the parent, used in the basic and diluted ZERARIEBRERFEAEA

earnings per share calculation & 15 7 E 653,542 628,170
Number of shares
B’ &
2020 2019
20205 20194
Shares &%

Weighted average number of ordinary shares FHRETESREARR # BRF|
in issue during the period used in the basic ZEIABBITEBROINE

and diluted earnings per share calculation T8

8,091,892,848  8,107,228,848

China South City Holdings Limited &% RARQ
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For the six months ended 30 September 2020 &k &= 2020459 A30H 1758 A

10. Dividends
The final dividend of HK3.0 cents per share amounting to
HK$242,757,000 for the financial year ended 31 March 2020
was approved on 22 September 2020, which was paid on 20
October 2020.

At a meeting of the Board held on 27 November 2020, the
directors resolved not to pay an interim dividend to shareholders
(six months ended 30 September 2019: Nil).

11. Property, Plant and Equipment
During the six months ended 30 September 2020, the Group
acquired property, plant and equipment with an aggregate
cost of approximately HK$27,301,000 (six months ended 30
September 2019: HK$15,101,000).

Certain of the Group’s buildings with an aggregate carrying
value of approximately HK$566,310,000 as at 30 September
2020 (31 March 2020: HK$385,121,000) were pledged to secure
general banking facilities granted to the Group (note 19).

At 30 September 2020, certificates of ownership in respect of
certain buildings of the Group in the PRC with an aggregate
carrying value of approximately HK$726,435,000 had not
been issued by the relevant PRC authorities (31 March 2020:
HK$676,083,000). The Group is in the process of obtaining the
relevant certificates of ownership.

INTERIM REPORT 2020/21 7 Ei%R&
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For the six months ended 30 September 2020 & Z=20204F9A30H 17X 18 A

12. Investment Properties

12. REYE

30 September 31 March

2020 2020

20205 20204

9H30H 3H31H

HK$'000 HK$'000

FTHER FHTT

(Unaudited) (Audited)

(REER) (BEZ)

Carrying amount at the beginning of period/year B/ FMEEE 50,873,673 52,464,934
Additions NE 98,376 355,801
Transfer from properties under development EREERDPYE = 110,541
Transfer from completed properties held for sale EREREHERTIME 99,458 1,750,162
Transfer to completed properties held for sale BESREHEHERTIWE (69,750) (1,762,704)
Net gain from a fair value adjustment NEERARFRE 23,044 1,677,947
Exchange realignment & 5 A 2,025,800 (3,723,008)
Carrying amount at the end of period/year B/ FROEEE 53,050,601 50,873,673

The Group’s investment properties with an aggregate carrying
value of approximately HK$27,186,521,000 as at 30 September
2020 (31 March 2020: HK$23,753,923,000) were pledged to
secure general banking facilities granted to the Group (note 19).

The Group's investment properties with an aggregate carrying
value of approximately HK$45,192,939,000 as at 30 September
2020 (31 March 2020: HK$43,276,530,000), are subject to sales
restrictions.

The Group’s investment properties consist of trade centers,
commercial and other ancillary facilities in Mainland China.
The Group’s investment properties were revalued on 30
September 2020 based on valuations performed by Savills
Valuation and Professional Services Limited, an independent
professional qualified valuer, at RMB46,617,400,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$53,050,601,000) (31 March 2020:
RMB46,481,200,000 (equivalent to HK$50,873,673,000)), on
an open market, existing use basis. Each year, the Group’s
management decides to appoint which external valuer to be
responsible for the external valuations of the Group’s properties.
Selection criteria include market knowledge, reputation,
independence and whether professional standards are maintained.
The Group's finance department has discussions with the valuer
on the valuation assumptions and valuation results twice a year
when the valuation is performed for interim and annual financial
reporting.

R2020F9A30H ' AEEEREBELY
27,186,521,000%8 7t (20203 A31H :
23,753,923,000/8 70) IR E M EE R IFER
REBER —RIBITRERERFTEE) -

R2020F9A308 ' A EEREEABLEY
45,192,939,000 7t (202043 A31 8 :
43,276,530,00078 70) I E Y X X EIHER
il o

AEBHNEREYWELREFTRAEARS
A HMEREMEESRHE - RE—FXB
VEELERMGEME-—ATFELSHE
MEEXBEMARAREITHNGEE NEBX
L&Y ER20205F9A30H R AR MIHRA
FA#EESHEEAARKL6,617,400,000
JC (#8 Z 7 #953,050,601,00078 7T)(20204F
38318 : AR#46,481,200,0007T (FBHE R4
50,873,673,0008 L)) c AEBEMNEEE S
FARATZRTAEHALEMEETIINEG
BERINEEEMARE - FRERBFETS
M BE . CFUM UREREHEFIEK
T oI FEEMBREETHER - A
EENREBEGFEMRTFEPBRFER
EREERERGELERETMARTH °
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12. Investment Properties (Continued) 12. BEWE®)
Fair value hierarchy AEEER
The following table illustrates the fair value measurement REBEREMENRAFEFEZEERIART
hierarchy of the Group’s investment properties: *:
Fair value
measurement as at
30 September 2020
using significant
unobservable inputs
(Level 3)
20205F9H30H &£ A
EAFATBETEN
DNEEFE
(5834)
HK$’000
FTExT
(Unaudited)
(REEX)
Recurring fair value measurement for: HATHENLEERTENE:
Trade centers, commercial and REFL - BERAMEERE
other ancillary facilities 53,050,601
During the period, there were no transfers of fair value HA - F1REF2R 2 EREEERATER
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers ENEY  F3RNEQFET=EEARE
into or out of Level 3. i e
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For the six months ended 30 September 2020 & Z=20204F9A30H 17X 18 A

12.

13.

Investment Properties (Continued)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

Below is a summary of the valuation technique used and the
key inputs to the valuation of investment properties:

12.

BREWE®)

AEEEBRE

AT AREMEGEMBNGEERTREE
TEMHE

Valuation Significant

technique unobservable inputs Range

fHE R EAFAERERZE & [E
As at As at
30 September 2020 31 March 2020
20205 120204
9H30H 3A31H
Trade centers, commercial and  Income capitalization Market unit rental rate 14-156 13-155

other ancillary facilities method (RMB/sg. m./month)
RHFPL - BER WAB R E mBENEE
Hi R ER (ANRE/EAX/A)

Capitalization rate

BALX

3.00%-8.25% 3.00%-8.25%

The fair values of investment properties are determined
principally using the income capitalization method by capitalizing
the rental income derived from the existing tenancies with
due provisions for the reversionary income potential of the
properties. The fair value measurement is positively correlated
to the market unit rental rate and negatively correlated to
the capitalization rate. For the portions which were under
construction, the expended construction costs and the costs that
are expected to be expended to complete the properties have
also been taken into account in arriving at their fair values.

Properties under Development

Certain of the Group’s properties under development with an
aggregate carrying value of approximately HK$1,131,303,000
as at 30 September 2020 (31 March 2020: HK$629,006,000),
were pledged to secure general banking facilities granted to the
Group (note 19).

The government grants of approximately RMB1,669,070,000
(equivalent to HK$1,852,000,000) (six months ended
30 September 2019: RMB27,722,000 (equivalent to
HK$31,373,000)), which were provided by the local government
authorities to support
development activities in connection with the Group’s property
development projects and were previously deducted from the

infrastructure construction and

additions of properties under development, have been credited
to the cost of properties sold during the current period.

13.

BREMELATEIERBABREEE
TEERBRBAHEMSNHESBEAERL
WHMERBEAERRAGHREEBME -
AFEFEETSHESKNEL BRERE
TR - RIEEZEZ#D - ERERF
B EXHWEEKRANTKHAZEBE
A EARATEREEBENA °

BRERPYE

M2020F9A30H A BE®AEY
1,131,303,000% 7T (20203 A31H :
629,006,000 )M E TERFAWEE K
HIEAREBER —RIBTHREMNERHM
F£19) o

IR T 48 BE 49 A R #51,669,070,0007T (18 & 7
1,852,000,0007% 7T)(&k = 201949 H30H 1L/
& A : AR #27,722,0007t (#8557 31,373,000
EIL)) BRI BT KERE  BEAEE
MEZREETFEAREMERIRERERE
EHRESE S ERUNEERBEERE
FYEFNG  TERNFAREEMERK AR
A e
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For the six months ended 30 September 2020 &k &= 2020459 A30H 1758 A

14. Properties Held for Finance Lease and Sale

Notes to Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Information (Continued)

w5 5 BR R 5 B R 3 B R (4D

14. HFMEHEREENR

30 September 31 March

2020 2020

20205 20204F

9H30H 3H31H

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FAET

(Unaudited) (Audited)

(REEER) (BE=Z)

Completed properties held for finance lease 5 {FRIE E R T % 266,138 259,431

Completed properties held for sale FEHER I ME 16,610,268 16,587,853
Properties under development expected EEREREERBAART

to be completed within the normal HEEPYE

operating cycle 22,391,212 23,477,531

Total BEr 39,001,480 40,065,384

30 September 31 March

2020 2020

Properties under development expected FEHIR TR A/EHEN 20204 20204

to be completed and ready for sale BRPYE 9AH30H 38318

HK$'000 HK$'000

FERT FET

(Unaudited) (Audited)

(REER) (&&E%)

Within one year —FR 6,393,657 5,275,571

Beyond one year —F1& 15,997,555 18,201,960

Total #Et 22,391,212 23,477,531

Certain of the Group’s properties held for finance lease
and properties held for sale with aggregate carrying values
of HK$47,208,000 (31 March 2020: HK$45,404,000) and
HK$7,908,138,000 (31 March 2020: HK$6,536,834,000) at the
end of the reporting period, respectively, were pledged to secure
general banking facilities granted to the Group (note 19). In
addition, certain properties held for sale with aggregate carrying
values of HK$102,840,000 are subject to sales restriction in
associate with the disputes with the amount due to a non-
controlling shareholder of approximately HK$99,650,000.
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(202043 A31H : 6,536,834,000% 7T)
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Notes to Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Information (Continued)
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For the six months ended 30 September 2020 & Z=20204F9A30H 17X 18 A

15.

Trade Receivables

Trade receivables represent sales income, rental receivables and
service income from customers which are payable on issuance
of invoices or in accordance with the terms of the related sale
and purchase agreements. The Group generally allows a credit
period of not exceeding 60 days to its customers. The Group
seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding receivables
and closely monitors them to minimise credit risk. Overdue
balances are reviewed regularly by senior management. In view
of this and the fact that the Group’s trade receivables relate to
a large number of diversified customers, there is no significant
concentration of credit risk. The Group does not hold any
collateral or other credit enhancements over its trade receivable
balances. Trade receivables are non-interest-bearing.

An ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at 30 September
2020 and 31 March 2020 based on the payment due date, net
of loss allowance, is as follows:

15.

FEW B 5 R X
RKREZEARERLERZREEIRE
HHEEMRERERETPOHERA &
Y iH & B AR AE WA » AR B —RIBH T EE
OREEMTFTEF, - AEEBMNEAREER
P& AT B R A B RE RO PR I B AR DAIEE A
RERE&E ShEEEeCHENR
s - AEN L RARENRKES KX
HAETRAEFER RUBEREPE
SRk - AEBEWREHEKREZESITFTH
EAAEAREMEREE - BKE SRR
BRE -

MR20204F9830H K% 202043H318 © R fF
HEEH EBURESEFTINBREEEEBEZN
BRE ST :

30 September 31 March

2020 2020

2020 20204

9H30H 3A31H

HK$'000 HK$'000

THET FAE T

(Unaudited) (Audited)

(REER) (LE=Z)

Within 3 months 318 A AR 522,545 277,152
Over 3 months w1 31E A 130,995 283,739
Total #Et 653,540 560,891
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Notes to Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Information (Continued)
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For the six months ended 30 September 2020 &k &= 2020459 A30H 1758 A

16. ZBRBHRUANTEHIIRZERME
B/ A

16. Financial Assets/Liabilities at Fair Value
Through Profit or Loss

30 September 2020

202049H30H

Assets Liabilities

BE 8&

HKS$'000 HK$'000

FERT FET

(Unaudited) (Unaudited)

(REER) (REFER)

Unlisted investment FLEMiIEE 8,862 -
Structured bank deposits EHEUERITER 301,970 -
Forward currency contracts EENE S K = 55,887
Total HEt 310,832 55,887
Current portion BN HA EB1 (301,970) (55,887)
Non-current portion FERNEA B 19 8,862 -

31 March 2020

202093 H31H
Assets Liabilities
BE =
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE T FET
(Audited) (Audited)
(T EZ) (&2 %)
Unlisted investment FELTEE 8,524 -
Structured bank deposits EBMERITHER 341,894 -
Forward currency contracts EEINE S L 15,448 -
Total HEt 365,866 -
Current portion BN HA EB 19 (357,342) -
Non-current portion JERNER B 17 8,524 -
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Notes to Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Information (Continued)
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For the six months ended 30 September 2020 & Z=20204F9A30H 17X 18 A

17. Cash and Bank Balances 17. BERBIER
30 September 31 March
2020 2020
20204 20204
9H30H 3H31H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE T FH&T
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEX) (&2 %)
Cash and bank balances e RIBITEH 10,263,762 10,303,541
Less: Restricted cash* B ZBRHIE S (3,.230,896) (3,461,147)
Pledged time deposits in connection HEEEBRENEER
with cooperation projects** TE H A7 3o+ (2,253,240) (3,072,010)
Time deposits with maturity of more 838 = A 2 B &9 F B
than three months 7 - (232,773)
Cash and cash equivalents RERBESEZEED 4,779,626 3,537,611

* %

Restricted cash mainly comprises: (i) guarantee deposits for the
mortgage loan facilities granted by the banks to purchasers of the
Group's properties; (i) guarantee funds of construction projects
to meet local authorities’ requirements; (i) certain amounts of
presale proceeds from properties placed as guarantee deposits
for the construction of related properties; (iv) certain amounts
of proceeds from lease of properties which have been placed as
guarantee deposits for the borrowings; and (v) pledged deposits
to secure general banking facilities granted to the Group.

Pledged time deposits in connection with cooperation
projects comprises pledged deposits of HK$2,253,240,000 (31
March 2020: HK$3,072,010,000) (the “Pledged Deposits”) to
secure loan facilities of HK$2,232,387,000 (31 March 2020:
HK$3,030,358,000) (the”Loans”) granted to certain independent
third parties (“Obligors”), in connection with certain cooperation
projects in which the Group and the Obligors jointly participated
in. Pursuant of the terms of the pledges, if there is any default
of the Loans by Obligors, the banks have the right to dispose of
the Pledged Deposits. The Obligors must repay the Loans so as
to release the pledges within 3 working days of receipt of such
request from the Group and have provided counter-guarantees
to the Group for all losses which may suffer due to the Obligors’
default of the Loans. The Loans were fully repaid and the pledges
were released accordingly before date of approval of these
financial statements.

* FREVSTERE: ()VHBEREEY X
ZERBRITERTHREERBENRE
BEe (NERBEEMNRISIATA S HE
e ER (N EBRENETHERES
BOMEREHEMERERNFREZS (V)
HEMENE THEMSRESEAER
EENRERS  RVEBERFERIESAR
SEER -RRTEEER -

> BAEEEHRENEEREHER
£1%2,253,240,0007% 7t (202043 A31H :
3,072,010,00058 0) EE #HF X ([EEHF
D) EEBFEAASEEARSAE L
AEEERANETEYE=F(EHAD
JE$523£2,232,387,00074 75 (202043 A318 -
3,030,358,000%8 70) ER ([EFK]) - BRI
HIRGER MREBAUEREEMED
wer - AIRITAREEZERER - EF
A 478 R U B AN £R 5 Sk R BR IR 12 803
BIEERERERARBRBEER - &
BAVBRAAEERERER  UEER
BEHABROMBEZNAABR - ERER
ZEW SRR R AR H AR B E E AR
LR INERER -
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For the six months ended 30 September 2020 &k &= 2020459 A30H 1758 A

17.

18.

Cash and Bank Balances (Continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank balances
of the Group denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”) amounted to
HK$9,467,653,000 (31 March 2020: HK$9,573,103,000). RMB
is not freely convertible into other currencies, however, under
Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB
for other currencies through banks authorized to conduct foreign
exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank
deposit rates. Short term time deposits are made for varying
periods of between one day and three months depending on the
immediate cash requirements of the Group, and earn interest at
the respective short term time deposit rates. The bank balances
and restricted cash are deposited with creditworthy banks with
no recent history of default.

Certain of the Group’s bank deposits with aggregate carrying
amount of HK$615,053,000 as at 30 September 2020 (31
March 2020: HK$1,151,174,000), were pledged to secure general
banking facilities granted to the Group (note 19).

Trade and Other Payables

17.

RERBITER®E

RBEHR  AEBUAREABMNIES
Ko #8717 45841 9,467,653,0005% 7T (202043 A
318 :9,573,103,000/8 L) - A R¥EIX 0] &
MAEBBEMER - A RIEFEKED
HNEE B IS R AL TE - HEEREERE - A
EEATLAEBEEEITINE X WIRITHE
ARBHBMABHEMER o

FRI|TZBEREBEEARTERMNKRZZF
B F K BRERF R o 2 HE B RN T R
EE NF-—REZEAALE RILKE
B R S FRME - A8 RESERHE
HERMERR - RTEHREIRHAS
THERREBR FEI AL ERKCEDN
RIT -

MR2020F9A30H ' AEBEEEEA
615,053,000/ 7t (2020F 3 A31H :
1,151,174,000%8 7T) & T REE R EA K
FEER —MRITHEMERFTIEI -

18. ES R HMWENSKIE

30 September 31 March

2020 2020

2020 20204

9A30H 3H31H

Notes HK$'000 HK$'000

Bt 3% FERT FABT

(Unaudited) (Audited)

(REEER) (&= Z)

Other payables and accruals HAb ERRIB R EFTIER 3,487,780 5,278,166

Notes payables RN (a 1,464,222 1,655,544

Advanced rental and other receipts TEREE R HEAMHKIE 4,066,481 5,573,375

Due to a non-controlling interest JE AT —FE 1 AR M 5 27(a) - 156,471

Lease liabilities HEaE 27,837 48,921

Dividend payable FET IR B 242,757 -

Refund liabilities RRBE = 654
Construction fee and retention ENEEERALREB S (b)

payables 2,869,372 2,876,667

Total e at 12,158,449 15,589,798

INTERIM REPORT 2020/21 7 Ei%R&
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For the six months ended 30 September 2020 & Z=20204F9A30H 17X 18 A

18.

Trade and Other Payables (Continued)
(@)  An aged analysis of the Group’s notes payables presented (@
based on the invoice date at the end of the reporting
period is as follows:

18. EZ R HEMEN KRR

RBEERRAEEERZERAZ RN
SENRE DO :

30 September 31 March

2020 2020

20204 20204F

9H30H 38318

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FH&T

(Unaudited) (Audited)

(REBEER) (&2 %)

Within 3 months 3@ AR 383,369 534,931
Over 3 months w1 31E A 1,080,853 1,120,613
Total w@Et 1,464,222 1,655,544

All the notes payable have maturity dates within 365
days. As at 30 September 2020, notes payable of the
Group amounting to HK$341,400,000 (31 March 2020:
HK$421,326,000) were discounted by these notes holders.

(b)  An aged analysis of the construction fee and retention (b)
payables as at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

iR Z M 365 ARE]H - 72020
F9A30H * A5 E A 2(341,400,00078 7T
(202043 A318 : 421,326,000 7T) K f&
NEEEHELEZEERFBARR -

REHAENEEERARRESH
BT :

30 September 31 March

2020 2020

20204 20204

9430H 3A318

HK$'000 HK$'000

FTHEx F& T

(Unaudited) (Audited)

(RBER) (L= %)

Within 1 year 15 R 2,308,586 1,060,018
Over 1 year K= 560,786 1,816,649
Total et 2,869,372 2,876,667

The construction fee and retention payables are non-
interest-bearing and repayable within the normal
operating cycle or on demand.

RNZEBREREESRRERARN
—Exiﬁ%ilﬁ%ﬂiﬁzﬁé%fﬂaia @
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For the six months ended 30 September 2020 &k &= 2020459 A30H 1758 A

30 September 2020 (Unaudited)
20209A30R (R EEH)
Effective
interest rate

31 March 2020 (Audited)
2020537310 (K E %)

Effective
interest rate

19. Interest-Bearing Bank and Other Borrowings 19. st E TR EMEE

(%) Maturity HK$'000 (%) Maturity HK$'000
BRAR ERF X
(%) £ TET (%) EE T
Current B &
Bank and other borrowings ROREMES
- unsecured -mEA 4.05-8.00  2020-2021 351,642 4.05-8.00  2020-2021 580,085
Bank and other borrowings ROREMES
- secured -FEA 3.85-9.25  2020-2021 1,990,411 3.95-7.18  2020-2021 3,215,115
Current portion of long term RERTREBEERR
bank and other borrowings: B ERER 4 -
Bank and other borrowings ROREMESR
- unsecured - EEA 4.35-7.00  2020-2021 199,853 570-6.80  2020-2021 246,436
Bank and other borrowings ROREMESR
- secured - BEM 3.90-12.00  2020-2021 4,398,046 395-12.35  2020-2021 4,158,792
6,939,952 8,200,428
Non-current JEEN
Bank and other borrowings BROREMEE
- unsecured - EEE 7.00 2023 81,926 6.65 2021 2,780
Bank and other borrowings BRAREMES
- secured -FEA 3.90-11.00  2021-2035 10,166,314 395-12.00  2021-2035 8,917,905
10,248,240 8,920,685
17,188,192 17,121,113
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FERTREMEBEE®)

19. Interest-Bearing Bank and Other Borrowings 19.

(Continued)

30 September 31 March
2020 2020
2020 20204
9A30H 3H31H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT AT
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (&%)
Analyzed into: DTN -
Bank and other borrowings repayable: HARUTHEEENERITR
Hifg & :
Within one year or on demand —F Ak EER 6,939,952 8,200,428
In the second year B _F 3,854,532 3,947,818
In the third to fifth years, inclusive EFE-EFERF
(BREREMFENRN) 2,140,832 2,820,260
Beyond five years AF & 4,252,876 2,152,607
17,188,192 17,121,113

On 14 September 2017, the Group entered into an asset-backed
securities (“ABS") arrangement with an independent third party
by pledging the future six years’ right of receiving management
fees for certain properties under its management for a maximum
of six years. An aggregate amount of RMB760,000,000 is the
priority portion of the ABS which had been purchased by the
third parties. The net proceeds from the ABS, after deducting the
issuance costs, amounted to approximately RMB742,535,000,
which are repayable from one year to six years. Interest is
payable quarterly in arrears. Holders of the priority portions of
the ABS are entitled to receive interests at varying rates ranging
from 6.3% to 6.6% per annum based on the terms and dates
of redemption. A portion of the above ABS with the principal
amounts of RMB120,000,000 and RMB100,000,000 matured
and were settled on 15 September 2018 and 15 September
2019, respectively.

On 25 September 2019, a subsidiary of the Company
repurchased a part of the ABS at an aggregated principal amount
of RMB270,000,000 and resold part of the ABS at an aggregated
principal amount of RMB67,500,000 in November 2019 and
December 2019, respectively.

R2017F9R 148 - AEBE—BIFE=F]
UaERAHFNEEXRFHFF([BEEXH
BEDLZH - URK6FHE THERRE E
BRAEFERE FZFERELEAAR
#:760,000,000 T B AR EELHFES -
MBRBETERAR  BEXREFMERIETF
KE4) A N FR#742,535,0007T © IR —ZENFE
BoNMERGEIN - BEREEIRFES
BAEAN BETIRGR  ROATZENTF
MEE3%ZE6.6%2FE « Ll —FH AL A
A R %120,000,0007T A A & 100,000,000
TTHWEEZFHES DRI HE R2018F9AH15
HK2019F9 8158 B HA Y 45 & -

ARRIH—KK B AR K2019F9H25H Bl i
A HAKE B ARK270,000,0007T B B H &
EXFES K R2019F11 A /2019412 A &
EAHARE A AREG67,500,0007T K20 &
EXRF&ES -
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19.

20.

Interest-Bearing Bank and Other Borrowings
(Continued)

During the period, the Company
the remaining ABS at an aggregated principal amount of
RMB337,500,000 (equivalent to HK$384,075,000). The
total consideration was RMB343,250,000 (equivalent to
HK$390,619,000), resulting in a loss on redemption amounting
to HK$9,111,000 in the current period.

repaid and redeemed

Certain of the Group’s bank and other borrowings are secured
by the Group’s buildings, investment properties, properties
under development, properties held for finance lease and sale
and bank deposits as stated in notes 11, 12, 13, 14 and 17.

As at 30 September 2020 and 31 March 2020, all interest-
bearing bank and other borrowings of the Group were
denominated in RMB and US dollars.

Senior Notes

The Company issued the following senior notes, which are listed
on the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited, in the
current and prior periods:

On 13 September 2016 and 3 October 2016, the Company
issued senior notes with aggregate principal amounts of
US$200,000,000 and US$150,000,000, respectively, (collectively
known as the “2016 Notes”). The 2016 Notes carry interest
at the rate of 6.75% per annum, payable semi-annually on
13 March and 13 September in arrears, and will mature on
13 September 2021, unless redeemed earlier. The offering
prices were at 98.960% and 98.964% of the aggregate
principal amounts of the 2016 Notes of US$200,000,000 and
US$150,000,000, respectively.

On 9 March 2017, the Company issued senior notes with an
aggregate principal amount of US$300,000,000 (the “2017
March Notes”). The 2017 March Notes carry interest at the
rate of 5.75% per annum, payable semi-annually on 9 March
and 9 September in arrears, and will mature on 9 March 2020,
unless redeemed earlier. The offering price was at 98.986% of
the aggregate principal amount of the 2017 March Notes. The
outstanding amount was fully settled on 9 March 2020.

INTERIM REPORT 2020/21 7 Ei%R&

19.

20.

AFERITREMEBEE®E

RABHMBE AR2REBERELD®HTA
K& & %8 A A R ¥337,500,0007T (17 & 7
384,075,000 L) WEES FFEH - ARE
A AR #343,250,0007T (485 74390,619,000
B IT) - BB AN B 8% 159,111,000/ T 2
fEE &1 -

2

R FENT ~ 12 13~ ARIVTFTE  REEE
FHROTEREMEERAEEEF - KEY
¥ ERBVE BEREHERBEEME
MR ITIE sRAE AR o

7202099 A30H K 202063A310 * A& E
AERBRTREMEBEEANARBRELS

B

BEARE
AR R 5 P T DA B P B 1T A T 1R BT 40
RESXSHBERDA LT 2 ELER:

MR2016F9 8138 K& 20164F10HA3H » &A 7]
o R 1T AR & 4 %8 /£200,000,000% 7T K&
150,000,000 JT FY & £ = 4% (5t 18 & 12016
FEE] - 20165F E B 1&Z F 7 %£6.75% 5T
B SEXEMN3A13BKROABERN i
M2021F9R 138 EI BA (BRFEIR FHE@) - 3%
BEE DA /20165 F 1% 2200,000,0003E 7T
150,000,0003 JT A & 42 58 #998.960% &
98.964% °

MR2017F3A9H - R QAR EH T A& B 5E
300,000,000 ST W) B £ & ([2017F3R %
&) ° 201753 EHEIRFF E5.75% T &
FF¥FEN3A9B ROAIB X » I #12020
FIAORH (R IEREER) - HEER
20173 Z B A% B FEH98.986% ° K (8
BZSBEEN2020F3A98 2 X -
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20.

Senior Notes (Continued)

On 20 November 2017, the Company issued senior notes with
the aggregate principal amount of US$300,000,000 (the “2017
November Notes”). The 2017 November Notes carry interest at
the rate of 7.25% per annum, payable semi-annually on 20 May
and 20 November in arrears, and will mature on 20 November
2022, unless redeemed earlier. The offering price was at 97.96%
of the aggregate principal amount of the 2017 November Notes.

On 25 January 2018, the Company issued senior notes with
the aggregate principal amount of US$250,000,000 (the “2018
January Notes”). The 2018 January Notes carry interest at the
rate of 7.25% per annum, payable semi-annually on 25 January
and 25 July in arrears, and will mature on 25 January 2021,
unless redeemed earlier. The offering price was at 99.011% of
the aggregate principal amount of the 2018 January Notes.

On 24 May 2018 and 4 June 2018, the Company issued senior
notes with the aggregate principal amounts of US$150,000,000
and US$100,000,000, respectively, (collectively known as the
“2018 May Notes”). The 2018 May Notes carry interest at
the rate of 10.875% per annum, payable semi-annually on
24 February and 24 August in arrears,
24 August 2020, unless redeemed earlier. The offering prices
were at 99.654% and 99.649% of the aggregate principal
amounts of the 2018 May Notes of US$150,000,000 and
US$100,000,000, respectively. The outstanding amount was fully
settled on 24 August 2020.

and will mature on

On 27 March 2019 and 12 June 2019, the Company issued
senior notes with the aggregate principal amounts of
US$200,000,000 and US$60,000,000, respectively, (collectively
known as the “2019 March Notes”). The 2019 March Notes
carry interest at the rate of 11.875% per annum, payable
semi-annually on 27 March and 27 September in arrears, and
will mature on 27 March 2021,
offering prices were at 99.567% and 99.566% of the aggregate
principal amounts of the 2019 March Notes of US$200,000,000
and US$60,000,000, respectively.

unless redeemed earlier. The

20.

BEEBEW®

R2017F11A208 » AR R BETAE BT

300,000,0003 Jt 9 18 % ZE #& ([2017F 11 A
ZE]) o 2017FNA BB IZF F E7.25% &F

8 BEFN5A208 K11 A20BX K - T #

R2022F 11 F208 2 HA (BRFIER FHEE) o 2

BEER20177TFNARBAS BEENI7.96% °

R2018F1H250 - AR A BT A & B 5
250,000 ooo%ﬁm%%?ﬂ%(rzms@ﬂﬁ
#2018 F 1 AZ BRI IBESRSAE
FRAA LM 2 2018 F1 AZBIRFFET7.25%
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M2018F5A24H K2018F6H4H -
AR BITARSE L

PiINE/N
4 %1150,000,0003 7T
100,000,000 T KM E X ZR (K E A
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8A248 X1 - W #5 7 2020F 8 A24H & Hf
(BRIFREMEE) - HEF/H A R2018455A
Z £ 2 150,000,000 7T % 100,000,000
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20.

Senior Notes (Continued)

On 12 December 2019 and 21 January 2020, the Company
issued senior notes with the aggregate principal amounts of
US$150,000,000 and US$200,000,000, respectively, (collectively
known as the “2019 December Notes”). The 2019 December
Notes carry interest at the rate of 11.50% per annum, payable
semi-annually on 12 August and 12 February in arrears, and
will mature on 12 February 2022, unless redeemed earlier.
The offering prices were at 97.396% and 98.791% of the
aggregate principal amounts of the 2019 December Notes of
US$150,000,000 and US$200,000,000, respectively.

On 26 February 2020 and 26 June 2020, the Company
issued senior notes with the aggregate principal amounts of
US$225,000,000 and US$125,000,000, respectively, (collectively
known as the “2020 February Notes”). The 2020 February Notes
carry interest at the rate of 10.875% per annum, payable semi-
annually on 26 June and 26 December in arrears, commencing
from 12 August 2020, and will mature on 26 June 2022,
unless redeemed earlier. The offering prices were at 97.073%
and 93.092% of the aggregate principal amounts of the 2020
February Notes of US$225,000,000 and US$125,000,000,
respectively.

On 12 August 2020, the Company issued senior notes with
the aggregate principal amount of US$200,000,000 (the “2020
August Notes”). The 2020 August Notes carry interest at the
rate of 11.5% per annum, payable semi-annually on 11 February
and 11 August in arrears, and will mature on 11 August 2021,
unless redeemed earlier. The offering prices were at 98.191%
of the aggregate principal amounts of the 2020 August Notes.

On 11 September 2020, the Company issued senior notes with
the aggregate principal amount of US$250,000,000 (the “2020
September Notes”). The 2020 September Notes carry interest
at the rate of 10.75% per annum, payable semi-annually on
11 April and 11 October in arrears, commencing from 11 April
2021, and will mature on 11 April 2023, unless redeemed earlier.
The offering prices were at 96.521% of the aggregate principal
amounts of the 2020 September Notes.
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20. Senior Notes (Continued)
The senior notes recognized in the statement of financial
position were calculated as follows:

200 BEEEE®
ERBBRRERRNEEZBHENT

30 September 31 March
2020 2020
2020F 20204
9H30H 3H31H
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt 2 FET FH T
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (&%)

Carrying amount at the beginning of RHF YR EREE
period/year 14,319,504 12,332,372
Additions & 4,304,542 4,827,950
Interest expenses FERX 815,703 1,149,392
Payment for interest AT AILE (685,823) (1,041,076)
Repurchase of the senior notes O EELEEE (i) (1,166,514) (1,065,434)
Principal repayment EEXRE (1,568,581) (1,883,700)
Carrying amount at the end of period/year R E "SR KREE 16,018,831 14,319,504
Current portion B ER &6 19 (7,785,255) (5,356,119)
Non-current portion FERDEREB 1 8,233,576 8,963,385

(i) During the period, the Company and a subsidiary of
the Company repurchased part of the senior notes with
an aggregated principal amount of US$149,906,000
(equivalent to HK$1,169,267,000) from the open
market. The total consideration of the repurchase was
US$146,981,000 (equivalent to HK$1,146,452,000). The
carrying amount of the repurchase was US$149,553,000
(equivalent to HK$1,166,514,000), resulting in a gain on
repurchase amounting to HK$20,062,000 in the current
period.

As at 30 September 2020, the fair value of the senior
notes amounted to HK$15,641,922,000 (31 March 2020:
HK$12,506,119,000). The fair value was calculated by using the
quoted market price of the senior notes on 30 September 2020.

() RAEHE A2 RARAH—RH
BATIR ARMEGEEBROELEZER
A HARE 4 5E75149,906,0005 7T (B
1,169,267,000/8 7T) - B ER R E A
146,981,000 7T (125 741,146,452,000
Bor) o FElES 2 Bk E B &149,553,000
%= 7t (FZ71,166,514,000% 7T) » B
N HA RS $%1520,062,0007 7T 2 [0 §# U

N2
s o
I

M2020F9H30B - EEEZRBH A FE
/15,641,922,0007%8 7T (202043 A31H :
12,506,119,0007% Jt) A & T3 £ B & 5%
ZEN2020F9A30R M M B ER 2R E &

s

H o
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21.

Medium-Term Notes
The Group has the following medium-term notes in issue in the
current and prior periods:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

On 9 May 2014, China South International Industrial
Materials City (Shenzhen) Company Limited (“China
South International”) completed the issuance of the
first tranche of medium-term notes of 2014 (the “2014
First Tranche MTN”) with a total principal amount of
RMB1,000,000,000 in the national inter-bank market of
the PRC. The 2014 First Tranche MTN carry interest at the
rate of 7.5% per annum, payable annually on 9 May in
arrears, and matured on 9 May 2019. The amount was
fully settled in May 2019.

On 12 September 2014, China South International
completed the issuance of the second tranche of medium-
term notes of 2014 (the “2014 Second Tranche MTN")
with a total principal amount of RMB1,000,000,000 in
the national inter-bank market of the PRC. The 2014
Second Tranche MTN carry interest at the rate of 8.4%
per annum, payable annually on 12 September in arrears,
and matured on 12 September 2019. The amount was
fully settled in September 2019.

On 18 April 2019, China South International completed
the issuance of the first tranche of medium-term notes of
2019 (the “2019 First Tranche MTN") with a total principal
amount of RMB600,000,000 in the national inter-bank
market of the PRC. The 2019 First Tranche MTN carry
interest at the rate of 8.5% per annum, payable annually
on 18 April in arrears, and have a term of up to 3 years.
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(ii)

(iii)

EHEERIERABCORIDABRA
A ([ZE @ B ) R2014F5H9A &
Bk £ FR B8R 17 T 35 3 1T20145F
—HHHER AXeBBAEARYE
1,000,000,0007T ° 20144 55 — Hi fp £
ZEFEFERAEIS%  BFERSAIBAE
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ER2019F58 2 8L+ -

ZEEEER2014F98 12 TR EFEH
RITEIMIRBIT2014FEE —HrhHH=E
B Ao @5 A AK%1,000000000
TLo2014F FE BT BHERFANEA
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FoOR12BEIH - H & %2 1201949
AE2H X -

= 5 B B R2019F4F18H E pX £
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For the six months ended 30 September 2020 & Z=20204F9A30H 17X 18 A

21.

Medium-Term Notes (Continued) 21. FHIRBE @)
The medium-term notes recognized in the statement of financial ERFBRARBERNTHAZEAENT
position were calculated as follows:
30 September 31 March
2020 2020
2020F 20204
9H30H 3H31H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (&%)
Carrying amount at the beginning of B/ FYNETE
period/year 707,668 2,459,903
Additions Zn = 652,760
Repayment EE = (2,265,781)
Interest expenses MEHZ 27,898 111,213
Payment for interests A B (56,590) (178,414)
Exchange realignment VE 5 58 2 27,391 (72,014)
Carrying amount at the end of period/year B/ FRMEEE 706,367 707,667
Current portion B HA EB 1 (58,038) (55,820)
Non-current portion FE BN ER &R 1 648,329 651,847

The fair value of the medium-term notes as at 30 September

2020 amounted to HK$694,413,000 (31

March 2020:

HK$689,445,000). The fair value was calculated by using
the quoted market price of the medium-term notes on 30

September 2020.

M2020F 98308 " HEEMN A FE
/694,413,000 7L (2020F 3 A318 :
689,445,000 L) © A E T E AT HERE
R2020F9A30E M M B B 2 REFTHE -

China South City Holdings Limited &% RARQ
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22.

Domestic Company Bonds 22. BERRFES
The Group has the following domestic company bonds in the REBRHARNRAFGISHEEATERNRGE
current and prior periods: 7
On 4 May 2016, China South International completed the issuance E AR R2016F5 848 TR PIFEIIE HFR
of the second tranche of domestic company bonds of 2016 (the S ETAe B8 A AR1,400,000,000
“2016 Second Tranche DCB”) with a total principal amount of TLHI2016 5 BB A RAEIES © 20165 F
RMB1,400,000,000 on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange. The 2016 ZHRARAESFFNERE8%  BFER
Second Tranche DCB carry interest at the rate of 6.85% per annum, SA3B X} WwK2019F5A3BEI8 - &
payable annually on 3 May in arrears, and matured on 3 May 2019. BB R2019F5 82 H X o
The amount was fully settled in May 2019.
On 2 August 2019 and 5 August 2019, China South Em B9 5201948 A2H 201958 A5
International completed the issuance of the first and second BEEKRAINZEAZRGMETRAE S LB
tranche of domestic company bonds of 2019 (collectively known A A ER%1,400,000,0007TH2019F 8 —H &
as the “2019 First and Second Tranche DCB”) with a total FEIEAREIES c 2019FF—HERFEZ
principal amount of RMB1,400,000,000 on the Shenzhen Stock HEANRAREHFFHNEES00% * DR FF
Exchange. The 2019 First and Second Tranche DCB carry interest M8HA1E R8ASHEX T » IR &K R3F -
at the rate of 8.00% per annum, payable annually on 1 August
and 5 August in arrears respectively, and have a term of up to
3 years.
The domestic company bonds recognized in the statement of ERMBRAKRBERNERNARESTE
financial position were calculated as follows: N
30 September 31 March
2020 2020
20204 20204
9A30H 3H31H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHE T
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (&%)
Carrying amount at the beginning of HFREREE
period/year 1,605,448 1,733,161
Additions 0 - 1,553,547
Repayment gt = (1,570,940)
Interest expenses FERMX 58,053 102,740
Payment for interests FRNEIRN (124,275) (107,608)
Exchange realignment VE 55828 62,112 (105,452)
Carrying amount at the end of period/year  Hi /“F XK T E 1,601,338 1,605,448
Current BN HR &R 17 (1,259,938) (1,277,098)
Non-current FE BN ER EB 1 341,400 328,350

The fair value of the domestic company bonds as at 30
September 2020 amounted to HK$1,497,785,000 (31 March
2020: HK$1,596,830,000). The fair value was calculated by using
the quoted market price of the domestic company bonds on 30
September 2020.
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For the six months ended 30 September 2020 & Z=20204F9A30H 17X 18 A

23. Share Capital 23. B
30 September 31 March
2020 2020
2020 20204
9A30H 3H31H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FAT
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(RBER) (&= Z)
Issued and fully paid: BEETRELE:
8,091,892,848 8,091,892,848 %
(31 March 2020: 8,107,228,848) (2020%F3A31H :
ordinary shares 8,107,228,848% ) & B % 7,222,312 7,222,312
A summary of movements in the Company’s share capital is as RARKBRAEHHENT
follows:

Number of Share
shares in issue capital
ERITRAHKE [
HK$'000
FHTT

At 31 March 2020 and at 1 April 2020 20203 /3318
2020F4H1H 8,107,228,848 7,222,312
Shares cancelled (note) % 17 7% 85 (M %) (15,336,000) -
At 30 September 2020 7202099 H30H 8,091,892,848 7,222,312

Note: The Company repurchased a total of 15,336,000 shares at
prices ranging from HK$0.87 to HK$0.89 per share on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited in February and March
2020. The amount of HK$13,548,000 in connection with the
share repurchase was paid from the distributable profits of the
Company. All 15,336,000 shares repurchased were cancelled on

27 April 2020.

MisE: ZARQFDHIR202042 8 K38 NAE%0.87
BT E0.89B LM BN BB AR ST
B R AR][El B 48 81 415,336,0000 f% 15 °
5 B8 2 B8 AR 7 B 50IE 13,548,000 ST E#E
RAREA 5 B AE A A 2 15,336,000
% B B B9 A% 15 2 202094 A278 # i

China South City Holdings Limited &% RARQ
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24. Share Options 24. BERE
The Company has adopted a share option scheme on 4 NN B FR2009F9 A48 £ A% B8 A% 4 5 2
September 2009 (the “2009 Share Option Scheme”) to provide ([20094F & A #E 5T &1 1) - M) %9 2N A &) 5k E B
incentives and reward to selected eligible persons which BARMELEERKBEERMANLCTESER
include directors, employees, officers, agents, consultants or AT@BEEFAEEEE EE =SRBE -
representatives of the Group for their contribution or potential RIE BERIRRBEZEHLER B
contribution to the Company or its subsidiaries. The Share ¥ 5+ £ B 20094F9 5308 #£ 4 &% » I 542019
Option Scheme became effective on 30 September 2009 and FORI3AKIE -
has expired on 13 September 2019.
Another share option scheme (the “2019 Share Option Scheme”) S—BEBEREE ([2019F BRETE DB
was approved by the shareholders in annual general meetings RERFRNEG EBEREE - WHR20195F
and became effective on 13 September 2019 and, unless OA13E AR - B AR A BT F (BrIEM
otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain in force for 10 SHEELEET) o 1R IR20194F 85 AR #E 51 &1 &Y
years from that date. Pursuant to the terms of the 2019 Share B AR MIBREMMEANERNE
Option Scheme, the Company may grant options at its discretion, B ETEERMMERNEGERAT(BEARR
to any eligible persons which include executive or non-executive RIS EMMB AT CHMITHIERITES - &
directors, employees, officers, agents or consultants of the 8 SABE REXBERETERE -
Company or any subsidiary for their contribution or potential
contribution to the Group.
The following share options were outstanding under the 2009 7 B R AR 2 2009 4F #2 AR # 51 &1 F120194F 5
Share Option Scheme and 2019 Share Option Scheme during AP ET Sl M ARTT R 2 AR T
the period:
30 September 2020 31 March 2020
2020 9H30H 20203 H31H
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise price Number of exercise price  Number of
per share options per share options
5 IR 0 A% hn ¥
FITEE BREHE FHITEE EREZE
HK$ ‘000 HK$ ‘000
BT & BT T
At beginning of period/year RE S F ) 1.4210 275,790 2.3684 316,290
Granted during the period/year BHFEREY = - 1.0000 73,800
Lapsed during the period/year HF KR 1.7500 (10,000) 3.8605 (109,300)
Forfeited during the period/year B F R = - 1.8100 (5,000)
At end of period/year REER 1.4086 265,790 1.4210 275,790
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24,

Share Options (Continued) 24. BRE®)
The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share options RIEER - RITEBRENITEE RITE
outstanding as at the end of the reporting period are as follows: B -
Number of options Exercise price Exercise period
BRESE TEE TEH
‘000 HK$ per share
T A& FRE T
39,995 1.528 13-01-2016 to 12-01-2021
201618138 £2021F 17121
39,995 1.528 13-01-2017 to 12-01-2022

2017FF1R13H E2022F 171268

7,500 1.75 22-08-2016 to 21-08-2021
201658 H22H £202148H21H
9,500 1.75 22-08-2017 to 21-08-2022
20178 A22H £2022F8H21H
2,000 1.75 22-08-2018 to 21-08-2023

201856 8H22H % 202348H21H

40,000 1.52 03-07-2017 to 02-07-2022
2017F7HA3H £202267H2H

40,000 1.52 03-07-2018 to 02-07-2023
2018 7H3H £202357H2H

4,000 1.81 13-04-2018 to 12-04-2023
2018 4H13H £2023F4H12H

6,500 1.81 13-04-2019 to 12-04-2024
20194138 22024547128

2,500 1.81 13-04-2020 to 12-04-2025

20204 138 £2025F4H12H

24,600 1.00 07-02-2021 to 06-02-2025
20212 A78B £2025%2 A68
24,600 1.00 07-02-2022 to 06-02-2025
202242 A7H £20254%2 A6H
24,600 1.00 07-02-2023 to 06—02-2025
20232 H7BE2025%2A68
265,790
The Group recognized a share option expense of HK$4,090,000 B E2020F9A30R L AEA - AEEER
(six months ended 30 September 2019: HK$1,006,000) during B P& 4 B S & $£4,090,0005 T (8 =20194F
the six months ended 30 September 2020. 9A308 IE7/~ 1@ A : 1,006,000 7T) °

China South City Holdings Limited &% RARQ
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24. Share Options (Continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had
265,790,000 share options outstanding under the 2009
Share Option Scheme and 2019 Share Option Scheme, which
represented approximately 3.28% of the Company’s shares in
issue as at that date. The exercise in full of the outstanding
share options would, under the present capital structure of
the Company, result in the issue of 265,790,000 additional
ordinary shares of the Company and additional share capital of
HK$374,405,000 (before issue expenses).

25. Contingent Liabilities

At the end of the reporting period, contingent liabilities not

24. B E®)

REREEIR - RIK2009F BB AXAE T E1F12019
F R ETE - A2 7 F265,790,00010 K
TEBERE HERAARERRRTR
D #13.28% ° BREARNRIREHNEARLEM
T RETERITEBRERSERAAA
% 17265,790,000 % %8 H) E i A% & B8 S0 AR AR
374,405,000/ 7T ($0BR B 4T 2 A1) ©

25. ZAREE
RI|EME - BHBENREBENIRE

provided for in the financial statements were as follows: BT
30 September 31 March
2020 2020
20205 20204
9A30H 3H31H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHER FAET
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEER) (REZ)

Guarantees given to banks in connection FE=ZHERMEEM

with facilities granted to third parties* M) &R 17 1E L AR 15,746,233 16,817,644

* The Group has provided guarantees in respect of banking facilities
granted by certain banks to the purchasers of the Group's properties
held for sale and held for finance lease. Pursuant to the terms of the
guarantees, if there is default of the loan payments by the purchasers
and lessees, the Group is responsible for repaying the outstanding loans
together with accrued interest thereon and any penalty owed by the
defaulted purchasers and lessees to banks. The Group is then entitled
to take over the legal titles and usage rights of the related properties.
For trade center units and residential properties sold, the guarantee
period commences from the dates of grant of the relevant loans and
ends when the purchasers obtain the building ownership certificates
which will then be pledged to the banks. For residential and commercial
properties under finance leases, the guarantees will be released along
with the full repayment of loan principals by the lessees.

The Group did not incur any material losses during the period in
respect of the guarantees provided for mortgage facilities granted to
the purchasers and lessees of the Group's properties. The directors
consider that in case of default on payments, the net realizable value
of the related properties can cover the repayment of the outstanding
mortgage loans together with any accrued interest and penalty, and
therefore the fair value of the guarantees is not significant.
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25.

26.

27.

Contingent Liabilities (Continued) 25. IARBEW)
The Group has pledged deposits amounting to ANEECE H B2 A2,253,240,00078 7T (2020
HK$2,253,240,000 (31 March 2020: HK$3,072,010,000) in #3H31A :3,072,010,0007% 75) A 1F 5K+ BALE
favour of the Obligors to secure their obtaining and use of the HAEBEAFRL2EEESIEEENEBLA
Loans, in connection with certain cooperation projects in which EEMERAER - REBEERGR  WREB
the Group and the Obligors jointly participated in. Pursuant to AMEREGEMELD - AIRTEEEEZ
the terms of the pledges, if there is any default of the Loans ERER - BHEABEARKEAREEFEK
by Obligors, the banks have the right to dispose of the Pledged i E R 2 938 TER A E R E AR
Deposits. The Obligors must repay the Loans so as to release the HEER - BBEALE MASEEREHKE
pledges within 3 working days of receipt of such request from RUAEEEBAZNMELHNAEER
the Group and have provided counter-guarantees to the Group K- -BEZRR BRLAMHRER  BEB
for all losses which may suffer due to the Obligors’ default of the ABEREEMEALEE  AULZERD
Loans. The Directors consider that due to the aforementioned AABELTERK -
counter-guarantees and that Obligors have no default in the
past, the fair value of the guarantees is not significant.
The Loans were fully repaid and the pledges were released ERERNZEN B RREL ERHAREEE
accordingly before the date of approval of these financial EBMBRHNE RIS #ER -
statements.
Commitments 26. *E1E
The Group had the following commitments at the end of the RMEMR - REB A THEE:
reporting period:
30 September 31 March
2020 2020
20205 20204
9A30H 3H31H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTER FH T
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (BEZ)
Contracted, but not provided for: B2 ET A8 R B -
Properties under development BERPYE 14,510,768 13,221,644
Related Party Transactions 27. BEALTRE

(@) Outstanding balances with related
parties
As at 30 September 2020, an amount of nil (31 March
2020: HK$156,471,000) included in trade and other
payables from a non-controlling shareholder of a
subsidiary was unsecured, interest-free and had no fixed
terms of repayment.

(a) HBEATZBNREN G

MW202059A30H - kBB A A&
FEZEBRBRENRBEREES R HA
FEI5RIE) 2%/ Z (20205F3A31H -
156,471,00087T) * ;25 A BEEA -
% B RERETEERE -
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27. Related Party Transactions (Continued) 27. BEALIRS &)
(b) Compensation of key management (b) XEEXTEEBEAESHMH:

personnel of the Group:

For the six months ended
30 September

HZ9H30H 1L <@ A
2020 2019
20205 20194
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHE T
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(RBER) (&%)
Short term employee benefits HEESREA 12,083 12,315
Post-employment benefits B R E A 36 36
Equity-settled share option expense  AE % 45 B /9 B8 I S 1,492 64
Total compensation paid to key YNFEEEEAERN
management personnel s 13,611 12,415
28. Fair Value and Fair Value Hierarchy of 28. ERMIAZATFERATFEER
Financial Instruments
The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group's financial AEEzeRTAZEABERAFEGRE
instruments, other than those with carrying amounts that EREATEREELERINGT:
reasonably approximate to fair values, are as follows:
Carrying amounts Fair values
AR H (B NEE
30 September 31 March 30 September 31 March
2020 2020 2020 2020
20204 20204 20204 20204
9H30H 3H31H 9H30H 3H31H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHER F#& T TET FHTT
(Unaudited) (Audited) (Unaudited) (Audited)

(REBER) (R #|) (REE®) (RRE %)

Senior notes BEER 16,018,831 14,319,504 15,641,922 12,506,119
Medium-term notes FREIE R 706,367 707,667 694,413 689,445
Domestic company bonds B AR EME S 1,601,338 1,605,448 1,497,785 1,596,830

18,326,536 16,632,619 17,834,120 14,792,394
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28.

Fair Value and Fair Value Hierarchy of
Financial Instruments (Continued)

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and
bank balances, trade receivables, financial assets included in
prepayments, other receivables and other assets,
liabilities included in trade and other payables and the current
portion of interest-bearing bank and other borrowings,
approximate to their carrying amounts largely due to the short
term maturities of these instruments.

financial

The Group’s management is responsible for determining the
policies and procedures for the fair value measurement of
financial instruments. The management reports directly to the
directors and the audit committee. At each reporting date,
the management analyzes the movements in the values of
financial instruments and determines the major inputs applied
in the valuation. The valuation is reviewed and approved by the
directors. The valuation process and results are discussed with
the audit committee twice a year for interim and annual financial
reporting.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included
at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged
in a current transaction between willing parties, other than
in a forced or liguidation sale. The following methods and
assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:

The fair values of the other long-term receivables, other long-
term payables and non-current portion of interest-bearing bank
and other borrowings have been calculated by discounting the
expected future cash flows using rates currently available for
financial instruments with similar terms, credit risk and remaining
maturities. The Group’s own non-performance risk in interest-
bearing bank and other borrowings as at 30 September 2020
was assessed to be insignificant. The fair values of the other
long-term receivables, other long-term payables and non-current
portion of interest-bearing bank and other borrowings are not
materially different from their carrying amounts.

The fair values of senior notes, medium-term notes and domestic
company bonds were calculated by using the quoted market
prices on 30 September 2020.

28.

ERMIACZATFERAFEER
(%)
EREEFERERRITENR  BRER
THEEBRAMNRK - HAMEURIE R HAM
BE TRAEEREZREMEMNRIEAR
ABRTTEREMEENRNHBs 2 A FER
HEAZREERE  T2E/ZFIAR
AR A -

AEEEEEAEBEETERIAAFEF
EZBERERNEF EEEEEREFERE
ZREGHRE NEMEEH EEEIMN
CRMIAZEEEDHYEFHEPERANT
EnE- - HEAESTERRILE - HEB
BREROABREZESBFIWMR - AR
2IRPERFEF B RS

TREEMABNAFERAIEERET
(REXBFREERINERARZPETR
BOTAZSBAR - B A FESHAA
ZHAERBREEWT

H R HA R IE - Bt R B RS FE R AT
BHRITREMEEZIFNBERIHQTE
TiEBFERAERTAIE SR T BEER BT
IFFLUER - EARBRERHBTREE @ i
BB ARBEREMHE - K202059F
308 AEBEFRFAERITEREAMEEZ
TERARBETIE AT TEKX - HibREAE
WiE - i RHEMRERTEBITRE
HE BB s N AFEEERERET
j(o

BEEE FHEBEMERAAREBESFZAF
B Ty {£ 20204930 M T i5 BE 2 W E

S s
=t &
al =+ °
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28.

Fair Value and Fair Value Hierarchy of
Financial Instruments (Continued)

As at 30 September 2020, the Group’s financial instruments
which comprised financial assets and liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss were measured at fair value. The Group's
financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss comprised unlisted investments, structured bank deposits
and forward currency contracts. The fair values of the unlisted
investments have been estimated using valuation methodology
according to the price of recent investments. The fair values
of structured bank deposits were measured using valuation
techniques including the Hull-White model and net present value
of the cash flow model. The models incorporate various market
observable inputs including the interest rate yield curve and
foreign exchange forward rate. Forward currency contracts were
measured using net present value of the cash flows model. The
models incorporate various market observable inputs including
risk-free interest rate, foreign exchange forward rate and implied
volatility of the exchange rate and spot prices.

Fair value hierarchy
The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement

hierarchy of the Group’s financial instruments:

Assets measured at fair value:

28.

EMIAZAFERAFERER
(&)
M20209F9A30R ' A& EBE R TABIKE
FERBEAATEIEZ2EHEERARE
NAFEFE AEBZERBEUAF
BIEZERHEERBERELTRE -
ERBERTERRERAIINESH - LT
BREMNAFEDNIRERORENEEER
HEFEHE EBERTERNAFEE
DIRBEEEFREEELRESRFRE
BREHERESE -ZSELRABRE
Pl R RIINERPEERSZEMS
ABRTE BRPEBENTERRSRF
RERAUGE ZEEIMABEERLR
ME INERMEXRURERRIREERKA
BEERELEMSAIBERTE

NEEER
AEEZERIANAFEEFEBRINRT
x:

RAFEFEBZEE:

Fair value measurement using

FEARATEGFTE

Quoted prices Significant Significant

in active observable unobservable

markets inputs inputs

& BT 5 BAT BEXTH

ZHRE BExk Bk
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
(SB15%) (SB28R) (SB34) M
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FERT FERT FERT
(Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(RBER) (REER) (REER) (CREER)

As at 30 September 2020 M2020%9H30H

Unlisted investment FLEMERE = = 8,862 8,862
Structured bank deposits BEBMRTER = 301,970 - 301,970
= 301,970 8,862 310,832
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28. Fair Value and Fair Value Hierarchy of 28.
Financial Instruments (Continued)
Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

Quoted prices

TMIRZAFERAFEER
()

NEEEBRE

Fair value measurement using
ERRATE B
Significant Significant

in active observable  unobservable

markets inputs inputs

R AR B AR BEBART

B BRTE BRI E
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
(F15) (F28%) (%E3%) mEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FAT FAT
(Audited) (Audited) (Audited) (Audited)
(EE%) (EEZ) (EEZ) (EE%)

As at 31 March 2020 202093 A31H

Unlisted investment FLEMZE - - 8,524 8,524
Structured bank deposits HEBMERITER - 341,894 - 341,894
Forward currency contracts EHIINES D - 15,448 - 15,448
- 357,342 8,524 365,866

Liabilities measured at fair value:

During the period, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfer into
or out of Level 3 (six months ended 30 September 2019: Nil).

BEAFEFTEZEE:
A ATFEFENRSIREE2H 2 ML &
BN e A8 E E3R (B E=201949
A30HIERNEA : &) -

China South City Holdings Limited &% RARQ

107



Notes to Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Information (Continued)

w5 5 BR R 5 B R 3 B R (4D

For the six months ended 30 September 2020 &k &= 2020459 A30H 1758 A

28. Fair Value and Fair Value Hierarchy of 28. 2RMTAZAFERATFERER
Financial Instruments (Continued) =)
Fair value hierarchy (Continued) ANEEESR®
Financial liabilities for which fair values are disclosed: ERELATEZESEMEME:
As at 30 September 2020 74202094308
Fair value measurement using
FERARAFETE
Quoted prices Significant
in active observable
markets inputs
EBT S BXRA
ZHE BERLE
(Level 1) (Level 2) Total
(%£14R) (%24R) LR
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FET THET
(Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REER) (REER) (REER)
Senior notes BERE 15,641,922 = 15,641,922
Medium-term notes hH SRR 694,413 = 694,413
Domestic company bonds BARAIES 1,497,785 — 1,497,785
Forward currency contracts REIINES L = 55,887 55,887
17,834,120 55,887 17,890,007
As at 31 March 2020 7202063 H31H
Fair value measurement using
FERARAFEE=
Quoted prices Significant
in active observable
markets inputs
VBB T % B ARA
Z W A(E BRITE
(Level 1) (Level 2) Total
(ZB14) (E28) K
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FB T FET FAET
(Audited) (Audited) (Audited)
(& EZ) (&%) (BEZ)
Senior notes BRER 12,506,119 - 12,506,119
Medium-term notes FHEI R IR 689,445 - 689,445
Domestic company bonds BARRES 1,596,830 - 1,596,830
14,792,394 - 14,792,394

29. WAEPHERAESHBESR

AAEEEENR2020F11 A27 8 #t £ R IR#E
Tz S ERARaMBEER -

29. Approval of Interim Condensed Consolidated
Financial Information
This interim condensed consolidated financial information was
approved and authorized for issue by the board of directors of
the Company on 27 November 2020.
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